
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Jerry Robinson
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmember Darfeness Hinds
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, MAY 4,2021
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

City Manager Jackie Gorman
City Attorney Fred Koberlein
City Clerk Latricia Wright
Deputy City Manager CJ Zimoski

OPENING PRAYER AND PI,EDG OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

ITEM _ 1 - ADDITIONS. DELETIONS. CH ES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

-2_PUBLICPARTI

ITEM - 3 - PROCLAMATION: RECOGNIZ G MAY 2 - 8TH AS MUNICIPAL CLERKS
WEEK_ MAYOR ROBINSON.

ITEM-4- AGENDA ho 4-9\
a

a

Caurlcil minutes from April 20.2021
202t-22 A

desisnatins Saturdav-
of

Julv 3. 2021. as the scheduled date for the 2021 Citv ofWilliston

A

Independence day Celebration. and establishing an effective date.
Resolution 2021-25: Resolution of the Citv Council of the Citv of Williston. Florida.
ratifyrng the Mayor's extension of the State of Emereency arising from the Covid-I9
Public Health emersency.

_ OLD BU

AND BOARD
o CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN
o DEPUTY CITY MANAGER CJ ZIMOSKI
o COUNCIL

1



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCILMEETING

TTF,M - 6 - NEW BUSINESS -
A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ON: APPROVING A PROPOSED

TON
JONES. (pp 10-60)

B. RESOLUTION 2O2I -20: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY CO CIL OF THE CITY
OF WII,I,ISTON FI A. AUTHORIZING THE ON OF A RELEASE

SATISFACTIO IN THE OFFICIAL
1562. BEGINNING T PAGE 40. OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY.
FLORIDA. RELATING TO A CODE LIEN. - CITY PLANNER
LAURA J . ho 6l-67\

C. RESOLUTION 2021-23: A RESOLUTI OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WILLISTON. F A. AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT
AWARD TN AN AMOUNT OF UP TO S23.OOO.OO. FROM THE UNITED STATES OF

ACTIN AVIATION
IN ACCORDAN WTH THE CORONAVIRI]S E AND RELIEF

AL
STEGALL. (pp 68-92)

RT MANAGER

D. rlPNTNTAI\I.tr NO. 690: AN ORDTI\T A NT'F NF TI{tr r1TTV OF WILLISTON
FLORIDA: 2 ADMINISTRATION: ARTICLE 6 FIN CES; REMOVING
LANGIIAGE IN S ON 2-232 COLLECTION OF EXPENS AND REPLACING

NEW ON OF FEES FOR ALL P

ACCOI]NTS. OF TYPES: PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION: AND
ING AN JACKIE

93-95)
E. SPECIAL EXCEPTION SE 2021-01: APPLICATION FROM RAHI ONE

PROPERTY. LLC TING A SPECIAL EXCEPTTON TO ALLOW ALCOHOL
SALES "PACKAGE STORE" IN A INTENSIVE (C-2\ DISTRICT. -

F.D
PLANNER -1

ISCI]SSION POSSIBLE ACTION: wHo SI COUNCIL PAF'S
ERSONNEL A PRESIDENT DEBRA

ITEM-7- PARTICIPATION

ITEM-8_ OUNCEMENTS

ITEM-9-ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDUT,ED MEE, G MAY 18.20214T 6:00 P.M.

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone

h ttps ://www. q oto m eet. m e/C i tvOfw i I I i sto n F L

2



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

You can also dial in using your phone.
(For supported devices, tap a onetouch number below to join instantly.)

United States:+1 (646) 749-3122
- O netouch : tel:+ 1 6467 4931 22..645230685#

Access Code: 645-230-685

YouTube Link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCKtl468kcNiBS2AyeOaBsRO

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting.

** Because this meeting is being held in person, Florida law requires that it be open to the physical
presence of the public. To maintain proper health precautions, we will maintain 6' separations in the
meeting room and we will offer additional seating in another area for the overflow if needed. Also, we
encourage the use of face masks in the meeting room. (Limitation of 50 people)

We invite you to continue participating in our council meetings via telephone or the Internet as we have
been doing for the last several weeks. **

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Public

I . All cell phones to be tumed off when entering the Council Chambers;
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The member of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter;
5. The audience member will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council member toward a member of the audience;
7. There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other member of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8. If an audience member wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the itern may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
ar-range to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.

In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that ifa person wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.

3



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS

Mayor Jerry Robinson
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmernber Darfeness Hinds
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLTSTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, APRIL 20,2O2I
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

City Manager Jackie Gorman
City Attomey Fred Koberlein
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Deputy City Manager CJ Zimoski

OPENING PRAYER AND OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Opening prayer and Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Robinson.

ITEM_1_ADDITTO DELETIONS. CHANGES AND OF THE AGENDA
Vice-President Robinson moved to approve agenda as written. Councilmember Cox seconded.
Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye".

ITEM_2- PARTICIPATION
None

ITEM - 3 - CONSENT AGENDA - Vice-President Robinson moved to approve consent
agenda. Councilmember Ross seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye".

o Couqcil minutes from April 6.2021

- OLD BUSINES

A. AND BOARD AND
o CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN - City Manager Gorman informed the

Council the City was awarded the Broadband Grant. City Manager also discussed
another grant that the City applied for which is the Dunn's Community Project Award
for $5.4 million dollars to build a new Fire Department and Police Department and
she thanked Mayor Robinson, David Peaton, and Matt Brooks for providing letters of
reference..

o DEPUTY CITY MANAGER CJ ZIMOSKI -absent
o COUNCIL - Vice-President Robinson asked about the 30 acres in Bronson. City

Manager Gorman replied she had not heard anything yet and will check with the
Realtor. Councilmember Ross asked what we were doing about Mr. Pesso's building

4



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

on top of the hill (Pawn Shop). City Planner Laura Jones informed Councilmember
Ross, Mr. Pesso has been cited by the Code Enforcement Officer as a repeat offender
and his case should be coming in front of the Board of Adjustment soon

ITEM-5-NEWBUSINESS-

A. WASTE COLLECTION RFP AWARD- CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN. _ City
Manager Gorman discussed the Waste Collection evaluation sheet with the Council and
explained it was a long hard process and after the evaluation was completed GLF was the
top pick. City Manager Gorman reported the evaluation team consisted of Renee Nipper,
Verdi Greaner and the Deputy City Manager CJ Zimoski. City Manager Gorman said
after everything is completed GLF will start providing the City with waste collection
service on June 1't.

Council President Jones asked were there any discussion and resident Albert Fuller asked
what kind of impact it will have on the citizens. City Manager Gorman replied residents
will see a decrease in price for their garbage service. Council President Jones gave each
company that had applied for the Waste Collection contract 5 minutes to speak. Dayna
Miller with Waste Pro spoke to the Council about the results. Mrs. Miller stated Waste
Pro has been a proud sponsor of Williston since 2017 and in2020 the company
experienced a lot of setbacks due to the pandemic which hurt the business. Mrs. Miller
also stated she did not understand the scoring evaluation the City used. John Paglia with
Florida Express Environmental, LLC spoke to the Council via phone and expressed
Florida Express had the lowest bid and don't see how the contract was awarded to
another company, a company that headquarters is based in Canada. Skip McCall and
Kevin Smith with GFL, thanked the City for choosing GFL to service their waste
collection and informed the Council yes their headquarters is located in Canada but they
have a corporate office in Raleigh North Carolina. After little discussion Councilmember
Ross moved to approve the recommendation to award GFL the Waste Collection
Services. Vice-President Robinson seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saying "Aye". City
Manager Gorman thanked staff for everything and especially Renee Nipper for keeping
up with all that was going on.

ITEM_6- PARTICIPATION - None

ITEM_7_ OUNCEMENTS Mayor Robinson announced National Day of Prayer is May
6'202I and will be held at Heritage Park Pavilion at noon. Chief Strow announced Walgreens
will be giving the Covid vaccine Monday through Friday from 8-5 free of charge.

ITEM - 8 - ADJOURNMENT- With no future business, Councilmember Cox moved to adjourn
the meeting at 6:35 p.m. Vice-President Robinson seconded. Motion carried 5-0 by saylng
"Aye".

5



RESOLUTION 2O2L-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA,

DESIGNATING SATURDAY, JULY 3,2O2L AS THE SCHEDULED DATE FOR THE

2021CITY OF WILLISTON INDEPENDENCE DAY CELEBRATION, AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston has dedicated it resources and efforts to promote
patriotism and pride in American traditions in recognizing the founding of this great nation; and

WHEREAS, the City of Williston Celebration is one of Williston's largest annual events
providing thousands with the opportunity to participate in a celebration in honor of the United
States of America.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as

being true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 2. That the City of Williston City Council hereby designated Saturday, July 3, 2O2L as

the scheduled date for the 2O2I City of Williston lndependence Day Celebration.

SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 4th day of May,202L

ATTEST: CITY OF WILLISON, FLORIDA

Latricia Wright, City Clerk Debra Jones, President
Williston City Council

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Frederick L. Koberlein, Jr., City Attorney

6



FLK/aj
04/28/27

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2O2L.O2S

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, RATIFYING THE MAYOR'S
EXTENSION OF THE STATE OF EMERGENCY ARISING
FROM THE COVID-l9 PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Novel Coronavirus Disease 2OL9 (COVID-19) is a severe acute

respiratory illness that can spread among humans through respiratory

transmission and presents with symptoms similar to those of influenza; and

WHEREAS, on March I, 2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order number

20-51 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health

Emergency; and

WHEREAS, on April 3, 2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 2O-9I

and Executive Order 20-92 directing all persons in Florida to limit their movements

and personal interactions outside of their home only to those necessary to obtain

or provide essential services or conduct essential activities; and

WHEREAS, on April 29,2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 2O-LL2

initiating "Phase 1: Safe. Smart. Step-by-Step. Plan for Florida's Recovery"; and

WHEREAS, on May 8, 2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 2o-ll4
extending the statewide state of emergency until July 7, 2O2O; and

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2O2O, the Governor's Executive Order 2O-I39

initiated "Phase 2: Safe. Smart. Step-by-Step. Plan for Florida's Recovery" and

extended the exceptions provided for in Executive Order 20-69, relating to local

government meetings, until June 30,2O2O; and

IIIHEREAS, on JuIy 7,2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 2O-L66

extending the statewide state of emergency, as well as those exceptions provided

for in Executive Order 20-69, until September 5,2O2O; and

WHEREAS, on Jluly 29,2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 20-779

amending order 20-69 creating statutory exceptions related to budget hearings

and extending the statewide state of emergency until September l, 2O2O; and

Page 1 of3

7



WHEREAS, on August 7, 2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 2O-

193 extending the statewide state of emergency, as well as those exceptions

provided for in Executive Order 20-69, until October 1,2O2O; and

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order

20-246 extending the statewide state of emergency, as well as those exceptions

provided for in Executive Order 20-69; and

WHEREAS, on November 3,2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 2O-

276 extending the statewide state of emergency until January 2, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on December 29 , 2O2O, the Governor issued Executive Order 20-

3 16 extending the statewide state of emergency until February 27 , 2021; and

WHEREAS, on February 26,2021, the Governor issued Executive Order 21-

45 extending the statewide state of emergency until April 27, 2021; and

IIIHEREAS'onApril 27, 2021, the Governor issued Executive Order 21-

94 extending the statewide state of emergency until l2:OI a.m. on June 26,2O2L;

and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.O3, of the City Charter, the Mayor may

extend the City's state of emergency related to COVID-19, and the President shall

assume all the powers and duties of the Mayor's office in the temporary absence

or disability of the Mayor; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has issued his Proclamations extending the current
state of emergency, copies of which are attached hereto as "Exhibit A"; and

IVHEREAS, the City Council, in order to protect the welfare and safety of the

citizens of the City and their property and out of an abundance of caution, finds

that the Mayor's declaration of a state of emergency should be ratified or confirmed

by the City Council in an open meeting.

NOUI, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Page 2 of3

8



Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are

incorporated herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council ratifies and extends the state of
emergency declared pursuant to the Mayor's Proclamations as well the provisions

included in City Council Resolution 2O2O-I7.

Section 3. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this _ day of

May 2O2L.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Debra Jones, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

By By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk Frederick L. Koberlein, Jr.,

City Attorney

Page 3 of 3

9



COT]NCIL AGENDA ITEM

is4ay 4,2021

TOPIC: Williston Corners Preliminary Plat

REQUESTED BY: Lanralones, Community Development & Grants Manager

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

This project is located between SR 27 and SW l't Ave., to the north and south and SW 6th St.
and SW 3'd St. to the west and east. The entire project is 1 1.54 Acres. Williston Shopping
Center Partners, LLC is the owner and Andrew Carswell of Mills Engineering is the Agent.

Williston Corners consists of 4lots (Lots 1-4); Zoning is Commercial Intensive (C-2). All lots
Easements have been put in place on the plat to accommodate Electric, Sewer and Water
Utilities. SW 1't Ave. that boarders the parcel on the south side will remain private.

There will not be off-site roadway or public improvements. No sites or roadway are proposed to
be dedicated to the public. The access drives proposed will remain private. No developer's
agreement will be required.

Final plat will follow when all lots are sold by developer.

LEGAL REVIEW: Complete

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Planning &Zoning Commission recommends the Cify Council
to approve Williston Corners Preliminary Plat.

ATTACHMENTS: Application and Plat

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

10



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY (PLAT} PLANS SUBMISSION CHECKLIST(Applies to Non-Minor Subdivisions)
Transmit ta: Planning & zoning Department, p.o. Bax 160, wrLLrsraN, FL 32696Phone: 352-52A-306A opt 3,
This Checklist is based on the relevant provisions of Chapler s6-16 - Subrnission ofPreliminary Plat - of the WILLISTON, FL Code of oroinances. The Code is availableonline at www.municode.com.
General Requirements
I Contact the Zoning Director, who will in coordination with Levy County E g11 office to
get an approved subdivision name.
f Schedule a pre-application conference with this Department as early as possible
in the project development process.
fl No subdivision apprication shail be schedured for processing untilthis
Department determines the application package is complete, including afl fees paid.fl since the application package compreteness determination must occur
PRI0R the agenda deadline date, do not wait until the deadline to submitthe application package. Application are reviewed by internaldepartments as well asby the department .Tle Zoning department wilt create-a staff report *ni"rr 15 piovided tothe reviewing Board with the agenOa.
I Resubmissions must also comply with the agenda deadline date.
I All subdivision submissions must comply with the relevanl requirements of
Section 56-16- Preliminary plans.
tr Be advised that no site clearing activity, other than the minimum necessary for
surveying purposes, may be initiated untilthe construction plans 

"r" "pprou*iAND a tree removal permit has been issued.
[] All plats, plans & specifications must be signed & sealed by a Florida registereci
nyryeyor, landscape architeet or engineer, as appropriate for the document,
fJ Preliminary plans are revieweo by tne Planning and Zoning cornmission and the city
Counci[.
f Phasing must be arranged so that each phase can stand alone and function
adequately with regard to required improvements, infrastructure and facilities.
s.ubmil 12 copies of the preliminary pians at the appropriate scate on 24,, by 36,,sheets P_Lus 1z copies of the plans'reduced to 1 

.i'; by'12',, PLUS and erecironic pDF
format of the drawings.
fl Submissions may require prove of tiile insurance.

Prelimina ry Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

11



i*tr* *** t***tt********a**ttlltttt* 
'rttl** 

*tt*r *rt**a rr* r+'**r**tt**i*r*tarr{t r}i ir *r1rt***t**** & t{* *}}****t*atr*ar, }.rr*

SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLANS SUBMISSION CHECKLIST

1-15 Lots $ 250 Application Fee .plus 912 Per lot or parcel
Preliminary Plat - 16 lots and up $500 Application Fee -ptus $1 2 Per lot or parcel

Rec'd Requirement
Legal description of the subject site - could be on the boundary survey
complete name and mailing address of the property owner, deieloper and engineer
Tract boundaries with dimensions
North arrow, date o{ preparation and other pertinenl legend informalion
A location map at no greater than 1000 scale
Zoning of the site AND adjacent parcels on all sides
Plat book and page of the site
Typical lot size by phase, if necessary
A copy of the draft HOA deeds, restrictions and covenants
Streets and easements of adjacent land
Topography map in NGVD contours at 1-foot intervals
site.conditions including, but nol limited to, exisling watercourses, drainage ditches,
bodies of water, wetland, 100-year flood elevations, and surrounding physical features
Existing property lines, buildings, transmission lines, water and/or si*eitines, bridges,
culverts, city limits and utility easements on the subject site AND the adjac6nt parcels
Levy County E-911 approved street names, street types, pavement widths and right-of way
dimensions and typical cross section diagrams
ldentification of the storm waler disposal method and conneclion to the city potable water,
wastewater and reuse syslems
Proposed off-site roadway and other public imgrovement$ in the area
Phasing the subdivislon, if any - lots must be numbered consecutively for the whole
project
Dedications of siles and roadways to the public
ldentify/map the on-site soils
A summary list of the total acres, lots, minimum lot area and lineal feet of streets
An environmental assessment pursuant lo the provisions of Chaple r 114 of lhis Code
A preliminary concurrency review document
Adequately address zoning, buffering, environmentally sensitive area, upland habitat,
floodplains, well field, aquifer prctection, historiclarcheological and traffic
A cD in PDF format which includes ALL the applicatidn package text and graphics
CERTIFICATION
l, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I have read this Checklist and undersland the requiremenis
described therein. I further understand that only application packages that have been determined
complete by the Department prior to agenda deadline will be scheduled for processing

,%r"'r--Ll
Owner or Au icant Sign Dale

Prelimina ry Application City of Williston Page 1 of 4

12



APPLICATION FOR SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLANS
(Applies only to division of land inlo 6 or more parcels)
(Please type or write very clearly)
County 911 Approved Subdivision Namet wiltisron corners
Parcel Number
Legal Descriptio See bounary survey

General Location andlor Street Address
eTa SF 6Fh si-

Project Area: ..-#ofUnits: 4 Density: Zoning
TypicalLot Size # of Phases
# Lots & Acres by Phase:
# Acres of Recreation Are # Acres of Wetlands:

II

4", o
# Acres of Roads & RIW: rl Public or Private Streets: o
Has this site been subject to any other development permit action inlfre tast-iilo yearsz
No -.--.._- lf Yes, provide the type of action and date of final action below.

nl"--^^ i n znnino rlarral enl nl an

Attach a copy of
Applicant Name:

the Property Owner's Authorization form
r.r-t I 1 -l ctnn elrnnninc {" fer Frrl_nsrc T.l,c

Email I nofi h l rrrncltnnmcrr ia1. com
Applicant Address 5555 South Kirkrnan Road, Suj.te 201

0r1a ndo, l-I 328i.9

Applica nt Phone #:'aat-ttq-6834 Cell Phone
Fax # andlor E-mail

*i*t* *r*tt*******tr*r*****r*i** t*t ** i**J** *trrtt *t**** t r, * t tr**{ *trr**ar*rrtra***** r*****r*rt+ri***tt********tt** ******

Owner Name: tJi 1 1 i e* nn Shann{no Oon r Prrlnerq ^ T.l.
Emai li (ib l rrr-ocke ommerc ial. com

Owner Address q ( ( nr r f l-r tz i *lrno* D eA q','i 14 ,O I

{-l r lando. F1 i 10

Owner Phone #: 447 *3 I 9-6834 Fax # andior E-rnail
Person to
architect,
attorney, etc.):
COntaCt Name: Andrew Carswell

be contacted regarding questions about this application (e.g. engineer,

Email

COntactAddreSS: P0 Box 778 Bronson, Fl 32621
Phane #: zsza,at-rgl, Fax#: E-mail:

Preliminary Applicaiion City of Williston Page 7 of 4

13



CERTIFICATION
l, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I have read the application and the relevant
guidance materialand understand the requirements described therein and that I will
fully comply with all City, State and Federal regulations applicable to this prot"rt.
I understand that the application fee is non-refundable. l'further understand ihat I am
responsible to reimburse the City for the ectual advertising costs AND the actual
consultants' review fees, if any. Said fees shall be paid within 30 days of ieceipi of the
City's invoice OR further processing of the application will cease uniil the invoice is paid
in full.
Applications need to be submltted by the ltrof the month to be consldered at the next
Planning & Zoning Commleslon meellng. Any and all eupportlng documents ttrat need to
be reviewed by the Gommission need to be submitteO byitre isnof ths same month to
be included in the packet for revlew.
I understand that only
Depa will be eduled

Applicant '5

packages that are determined complete by the

Date
OWN ER'S APPLICATION AUTHORIZATION
lRequlrcd lf the property ownor of record ls not the appllcant)
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF LEVY
Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared
who being by me first duly swom on oath, deposes and says:
1. That he/she is the property owner of the subject parcel(s) in this application
2. That he/she desires to apply for a Subdivision Preliminary plans on land
generally located at (insert legal description)

old W1111ston Hieh School proper ty see legal description attached

Qt.t

3. That he/she has
acl as ln

s of

Name
qLt ,..rt

Serial Number My Commission

to
to accomplish the above.

.r$ul:'. HEAIHERcooNs

ilSlEh1i Notrry Publlc . stlte ot Floridd

lsrffi -, i : ffi l';iT lf i1111%'.
Sonded throuBh N.tlonal Notrry Assn,

Preliminary Application City of Williston Page 1 of 4

14



MILLS ENGINEERING COMPANY

P. O. Box 718 - 604 East Hathaway Avenue
Bronson, Florida3262l
Phone (352) 486-2872
Email: millseng@bellsouth.net
Certificate of Authorization 2583

PRELIMINARY PLAT
WILLISTON CORNERS

1. Subdivision Name: Williston Corners

2. A pre-application meeting was held with the City Manager and the City Planner on
November 19,2020.

3. The property description is provided on the Boundary Survey and the Preliminary
Plat as follows:

OVERALL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Commence at the Northwest corner of Block 31, of the Map of Williston as per
plat thereof recorded in Plat _Book 1, Page 1 of the Public Records of Levy
County, Florida; thence S79o14'05"W, atong the westerly extension ol the
southerly right-of-way line of West Noble Avenue, also known as U.S. Highway
27 Allernate and State Road 500, a distance of 42.00 feet to the westerly right-of-
way line of Southwest Third Street, formerly Levy Street as per said plat of Map
of Williston being the Point of Beginning;thence continue S79014'05"W along
the southerly right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 27 Alternate, a distance of
1196.64 feet to a point on the northerly boundary of Lot 5, Block 1 of Weona Hills
Estates as per plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 8 of the Public Records
of Le_vy County, Florida; thence 510 o50'44"E, a distance of 139.00 feet; thence
S80 433'35"W, a distance of 104.59 feet to the easterly right-of-way line of
Southwest Sixth Street, formerly known as Williams Street on the said plat of
Weona Hills Estates; thence S00 u22'36"E, along said easterly right-of-way line a
distance of 159.53 feet to the northwesterly corner of Lot 15, Block 1 of said
Weona Hills Estates; thence N79 o 23'51'E, a distance of 50.00 feet to the
northeasterly corner of said Lot 15; thence S00 o22'36"E along the easterly line
of said Lot 15, a distance of 103.00 feet to the southeasterly corner of said Lot 15
and the northerly right-of-way line of Southwest First Avenue, formerly Church
Avenue as per plat of said Weona Hills Estates; thence N79 u23'51"E, along the
northerly right-of-way line of said Southwest First Avenue, a distance of
957.10 feet; thence N78 "53'58"E, continuing along said northerly right-otway

Page 1 of 6

15



line, a distance of 341.92 feet to the westerly right-otway line of aforesaid
Southwest Third Street; thence N10 051'39'W, atong said westerly right-of-way
line, a distance of 395.68 feet to the Point ol Beginning. All lying and being
located in Section 6, Township 13 South, Range 19 East, City of Williston, Levy
County, Florida

Containing 11.54 acres, more or less.

4. Property Owner/Developer

Williston Shopping Center Partners, LLC
5555 South Kirkman Road. Suite 201
Orlando, Florida 32819
Contact: Joseph Scheuman
Telephone: 407-319-6834
email : ioe@blurockcommercial.com

5. Project Engineer

D. Andrew Carswell, PE
Mills Engineering Company
Post Office Box778
Bronson, Florida 32621
Telephone : 352-486-2872
email : millseno@bellsouth.net

6. Tract Boundary

The dimensions of the tract boundary are shown on the boundary survey and the
preliminary plat.

7. Legend lnformation

North arrow, date of preparation and legend information is shown on the
preliminary plat.

8. Location Map

A location map is shown on the preliminary plat.

7. Zoning

The zoning of the property is C2. The adjacent properties to the north and west
side of property are C1, The adjacent properties south of the site are zoned R2
and C2. The adjacent properties to the east of the site are zoned C1 and R2.
The zoning in shown on the preliminary plat.

Page 2 of 6

16



8. Plat Book and Page

A spot for the plat book and page is provided on each page of the proposed plat
The plat book and page are assigned once the plat is approved.

9. Lot Size

The site is being divided into four commercial lots. The size of the lots range
from 1.94 acres to 3.80 acres. The size of the lots vary due to the anticipated
use of the site. The minimum size of the Lots is 212.37 feet x 397 feet.

10. Draft HOA, Restrictions and Covenants

A copy of the draft declaration for the site is attached

11. Street and Easements of Adjacent Land

The existing streets adjacent to the property are shown on the preliminary plat.

12. Topography and Site Conditions

The topography and predevelopment site conditions are shown on the attached
"Pre-Development Drainage M?p", Sheet 7 of 41from the Construction Plans.
The topography is on the NAVD 88 datum. The NGVD 1929 datum is
approximately 0.81 feet higher than the NAVD88 datum.

13. Existing Features on Adjacent Properties

The existing utilities (water, sewer and electric) are shown on "Overall Utility
Plan", Sheet 24 ol 41of the Construction Plans.

14. Proposed Streets

No streets are proposed by this development. The access drives proposed will
remain private. The proposed construction of the access drives shown are
shown in the construction plans for the development and conform to the City's
requirements for city streets even though they are not proposed to be dedicated
to the City.

1 5. Stormwater Management

The proposed stormwater management system is designed to attenuate the
runoff from the 100 year frequency critical event design storms such that the
discharge to offsite areas is less in volume and rate than the predevelopment

Page 3 of 6

17



conditions. The existing flooding area al the southeasterly corner of the site has
a lower flood stage in the post development analysis.

The site connects to the FDOT stormwater system along Noble Avenue. A small
portion of Lot 4 will continue to drain southward from the site. Refer to Drainage
Master - Post Development", Sheet 8 of 41 of the Construction Plans for the
proposed stormwater management plan overview and flood stages.

The project proposes to connect to the existing water main along SW 1 AVENUE
to provide water to Lots 1,2, and 4. Lot 3. will connect to an existing service line
off of Noble Avenue. Refer "Overall Utility Plan", Sheet 24 of 41of the
Construction Plans.

The project proposes to connect to the existing gravity sewer on SW 3 Street.

Refer "Overall Utility Plan", Sheet 24 of 41 of the Construction Plans for water
and sewer proposed connection points. The construction costs of these
connections will be borne by the Developer.

16. Offsite Roadway and Other Public lmprovements

No offsite roadway or other public improvements are needed for the proposed
project. The area of the previously abandoned right-of-way along SW 1 Avenue
through the school area is being purchased by the Developer from the Levy
County School Board.

Areas where existing City Streets are being cut to install water and sewer
connections will be repaired as required by the City.

17. Phasing

The individual lots will be constructed separately according to the master plan
shown in the Construction plans. The Lots are numbered sequentially..

18. Dedications of Sites and Roadways to the Public

No sites or roadways are proposed to be dedicated to the Public for this project

19. Onsite Soils

The onsite soils types area shown on "Geotechnical Borings", Sheet 6 of 41 of
the Construction Plans. The onsite soils are mapped as "Pedro-Jonesville,
Shadeville Complex" by the NCRS soil survey of Levy County, Florida.
Numerous soil borings were conducted as part of the development plans as
shown on the Sheet 6 of 41.

Page 4 of 6

18



20. Summary of Areas

Total Land Area = 11 .54 acres

Lotl -3.34acres
Lot2-1.94acres
Lot3- 2.47acres
Lot4- 3.79acres

Streets-0linearfeet

21. Environmental Assessment

Chapter 114 was not found in the Williston Ordinances as viewed on
municode.com. The site was the former site for the Williston High School. The
site was highly developed. There are not any wetland or environmentally
sensitive area on the site.

22. Concurrency

Water: The City water treatment supply system #1 has a permitted capacity of
0.66 mgd. The current demand is approximately 0.155 mgd. The anticipated
demand of the proposed project is 0.005 mgd for domestic use.

Sewer: The City treatment facility has a permitted capacity of 0.45 mgd. The
current flows are approximately 0.225 mgd (annual average). The anticipated
flow from the proposed project is approximately 0.005 mgd.

Gas service is not proposed.

Solid waste collection is provided by private services.

Traffic. A traffic study was performed for the site as part of the FDOT permitting
process. The net new trip generation was estimated at 2265 trips per day with a
peak AM rate of 109 vehicles per hour and peak PM rate of 185 trips. Of these
trips a estimated 5% will utilize the SW 1 AVENUE. This is much less than the
capacity of the roadway for a traffic level C.

24. Bullering, Wellfield and Aquifer Protection, Historic/Archeological

The use of the site a\s a commercial area is consistent with the use of the
adjacent properties along Noble Avenue. The property to the south is the Joyce
Bullock Elementary School. The school has removed its bus pick/up drop off
from this area to a site which will not be affected by the proposed development.
The site plan for Lot 4 shows that the main activity will be buffered from the
properties west of the site by the drainage retention area. The drainage area

Page 5 of 6

19



along the southerly side of the property will also provide a buffer between the
commercial area and the uses to the south of the project.

The site is located approximately 875 feet from the City's potable well located at
the Fire Station (System 2). The design of the site meets the water quality
requirements for stormwater treatment.

There are no known historic or archeological sites of significance at the site. The
site has been previously disturbed and developed. lt is unlikely that any new
relics would be discovered at the site.

ATTACHMENTS

Preliminary Plat (2 sheet, 24"x36")
Partial Set of Construction Plans (Sheets 1 , 3, 5, 6,7 ,8, 1 0, and 24)(24"x36")
Boundary Survey (2 sheet, 24"x36")

Reduced set of the above on 1 1"x17"

Declaration of Easements, Covenants, and Restrictions (DRAFT)

Page 6 of 6

20



WM.[.[STC]V COR]VERS P|d.T B00K _, PAGE _
PAGI I OF 2

AlBAU-EBEMI-EEflPfroni LYINC IN SECTION 6, TOTNSHIP 13 SO[,TH, RANCI 19 IAST
CI1Y OF IYIITISTON, COUNTY OF If,VY, STATE OF ruORIDA

hnn.ne tt hc hrbwt @il.r ol M 31, oI kc frp d liltun a Er pbt 6.d @@ in tul
tuk L Pry I .l hc Puilic Mtu.l bet bMtL frtitu: &De Wrl6?. .lq Ue 6ledl *&dbn
d ltu sothedf .ighL-d-r.t lia. ol I6t hblc AecnE, .b tuofr a U.A EAnt n AItu L trd tub
W W, a dbb@ d Q.U L.L b th. rdkrlt rgnt-ol-ny lia. ol fiubEl mid &E4 tffi.dy brr
Wt a pt eid pLt d {.p d ti[&oa &iq hc tuint d Wknlry: Me @abG W16T .b8 q.
@u&d! t6ht-ol-n! lin d U.S. giahA! 27 ttt m.t . t dBbnd d il$.& let t . ftut oa &. aoild!
tund.ry d bt t tuct I 6t kn. Bttb Etu@ I F. pLt &.@t lwdd h tut W 2 Pq. I ot h.
tuilic tur& d bq hunL!, tudhi hcre gm'42, a dtue ol lg.W lc.t lhae sffi'fi'!, t
dbbae ot lq.$ ld b U. M! .tght-.|-et lia. ot &ubEt Srth shi Im.d! knoan a ,iilbfir

r@.!E5:
1, tufr6 tu tud, tu M bd a @ M being d

sBllw\ d4 tu dW k tut ftfir-d-w tu d
trsr W IHE (@ hom 6 sbic Rd &. W U.S Nghvq
M, 27 Ulryb d U,! Higiry M, at) @ @ @ tuqbttu,

Z r& @& qbls r ptu oI k^o@ tu E4ol6 6 ed
h tul hok 2, PW E ol lh. to& Reo6 ol Lry tunlt W.

ownB cmf,gf,on dD D8DI4ilot:

tilltu $+riq Ceer Prba 4 r Pldd. bibd litrli!, Coetsry, & h'lul om.d d O. lr.dr ddH b@ [.r
dd k IE. b b llGrd .!d r&indd, od U.t Ui phl m dd. ia .&d.!e dU .id |lm! b & hon s
IromX @ffi'! !d;, .dopd r & ift .!d ffiapLt d dd l.!d.

rea ddu ..aedL rlm ll.!q c h.Eb/ ddiqd b bt om.n ol illml miffi t r 6. hmrl d h bt om.n
.d &dr b6.k. cuF.b cuhd rdlc ilvib r m.add{ ud FFd .aDat t r Fdff.. rd Ebidlu
(iEludiq de.d fiDihu@ hdor hil6 &liq he) int4 qE, ud a6 h .oaDon dU otl4 oq, rF. ud
rclil 6. rM 0riE en..! d.Id !.ft!. ilDi.ct !ffir ir . FrFtu./ ridl d ..xDer [.Eh @4 tor il@
.nd lE l, ..iL&.. pohl. fiE, Lr arotEE..l .!d @ry./ ndial ffilc Eti& ..d U.i! Fd.cl @idha
lds b O. ilUrooa.

Uulit am!tu ,br! d robd laan rn ldry |tf,d r M{rduiq tsrytld .|ulot Io! U€ ,@ d tubu{,
ui{, n.bhIq. Epddry ..d Epldry qdd odqDud tud m! lir4 rdbry rE piF. r.b! od tr dJut
.lfthc pnr lird. t&pad. li.q oDb bl.dd r.d oO.! ffir.iduo lird ud d udi9 lila dE piF, .d 6Dduih
rlid D.J lFn [6. b U@ D. ...gr, b rd d.dor@l ol h. bh

kl on ttc sld pbl ot laft M tuE UNc Wfiz abry sr aAd! dght-ot-a.t liE a
dibnc. ol |fi.fr H b W noMEEil! ffie .l bt la Eld I d sfr t@tu fl/& Mla &.rc
WSIE, . dtune ot fr.U l@t t hc ffistuty ffi.t .I sd U t5: M6 WW"E tloq b.
Nbdt lin ot 6b bt 15, . d&6ne ol l@.N Iet to U. puh$bdt coil.r .l eid bt tS .nd ko
idh6d! dgnl-d-6! lia. ol tuulhwl fr6t Av.n!., lmd! Ch!rcn 

^wu. 
B N pbt ol stu ted, trtu

Mta: Uqce W'51'8, ,bry th. notbd! righl-.|-n! Iirc d sh *!k@ nd kcnuo, . d&ne ol
67.10 let; wne NW$'e @nhriq,hq sH ntecilf rithl-ol-ry linc,. d&ae ol34LU lcL b
b. Bdt .itht-ol-rt! ti^. ol .lo.d 9uUwL frid Sht hc fltrl5g\, .bq N @.lt
?itht.-d.-).t lin., t dtuune ol ffi.$ Iat b k Point d Bqinziry. ill Itiry tnd Mry M@ h tution I,
brdip lJ &ut[, tury Ig W, CA ol UI&n, bry CNnLt fltu

Conbiniq ll.il ,.e ile ot 16.

tMl puNL n A. Oy or Wiob! ild Ut ,.
dhbD@ d b. .4or.b

! irFd up &. fitt d liltb la iDP'ltuel or

ttllitun $oppi{ &.b hrbd, U
tuCt ldF, Ytu hd@t
ffi $uU litu.n to.d, $iL flt
oftr&, fldfi Ulg
rmorerm

BECOEDED EASEUEI'NF.:

PIru NA UI . PM .A"

t Fet ol bnd ta ktun I, foffip l3 tulk. tuoF l9 tu4 kry Co!ilf. notu, biq noE Fdicubdt

hnn ne .n h. tuuM! dbdq d k h.t lin d bL V, tuk 1, lilltun tuEhb a ffi ia tuL tu* I,
Pq. 1I ol U. NUic ]@dt d be! @unu, ffi. .L . p.bt 1ol7 l@L bu&ady tun Oe &rud .ffier al
aid bt p; ttue w1'6), ra.@ kt: M4 gt6'fi' 8, 10.@ lFt b . pht on b. tuahd! riShl d .at
linc ol S.& W (Nobh Awuc) .nd U. Poiil d aqinilq, th.ne tM1'68 dW oU bubd! right ol nt ha
. dtun6 ot 5.N tdl: hcde stt6'ft'8, 5.N tet ba@ WI1'6\, trN teti th.n6 Nlt6'fia, 5.00 tc.t b
th. PdnL d ktinni+
tubidq 6 qutrc l4 n4 or @.

Ptw t0. M - Pffi z"
t tsdt ot bd in tuhn e, foaEhip 13 $!&. &ry tg tu|, Uet Coott no.tu &int NE ptull.dt

tunene a h. tuuhd! exbdn al W tut [n ol bL &, tu k 1. ti[itun fl.itnb d edd ir A.l &d L
Pqc 1t ot bc pubtb Etu d bV hunlt, tuddt. .L . pdtt 10.1? lat $uth.dy l@ ho tuutM @N .l

I hE!, c{lt Ul d & &t F'dl, qp.d UoE DC, ,cal S.t|e&, rlo ! d{t eE ..d rlo tuddd . nddr
DdEr! Uce .d idaff tu .!d do ddd b. .h lubu|ul .d rct.orHtd HoE o. 6.t h. .rdH rd

xm[Y tmE

m&cn cmErzoil

l. b. ud.dod diF of trldub Sb U. ldd.. ol ht dl. nodr$ ,@dd iomddldM16l.
p[t &d ioin i, U. ddiduo!&utn trd & ldr @e!t b &!

aid bt n hae rcnE L N.fi lel: [.ra slr€SE WW leL b t Fhl oo Ua &ub*l! tight d ,s!
line ol 3.k ffi (Notu A!@u.) .rd k6 P.iaL ol aqbliry: hM Wo'fr^l tbry sid gtuqt ritht .l dt he,
. dtune d 5.N l& Lhqa 1A19NE,5.@ 14 Ude NM|UE, dN l&U Lhae Mt1?U'r, 5.N ldl to

Vicin
SCALEI

iiy Mop
1"=25OO'* rcg0mrffi

I hEa, edf, U.t d & 6/
dul, @n .!d tho luddd .
hl@ o. brt n. .rcuH d

th. tuial ol 84innlry
babi^iry 6 qurre tet, nN d @.

P/ffiNO, W
I pret d ttnd k tuion 6, fotuip t3 &!b, tuW Ie tuL kV hunlt tud4 Eiq noft Filicuhd!

WENU on b. &!thd! .xbdn ol thc Mt h. ol bt V, &e* 1, Wtun MghA, a @d& tn Pttt W t,

cmmfi 0f 0Pmv& dD t@Ftxc6 @ ,8otatroxs

l. 

-, 

{ M..l ol b. Ory 6u.il ot tu &tt d lillitu.. 8ddr,
nd.. .l r dut .oH plhlic daUq on 

- 

did d.hin! &t b! tl.t
@aloru b U. quEMb C Sr qtt d tilEbr. fbd& Lnd ddopndt Dd eMifto
41.!@ od .!Fa Ur tn s . n.d pLL

p..llt +Fd ef@ @, 

-, 

do !
nod& Ddtrt Ifu d id.lurB.Uoa .d ilo .rdd b6 rh ishn..l md rdrorldtd
ituD.lt te b. ui Dd pr nd .tld. ..d did Lt. .! oU.

fmm ro8lc

W 11, ot ka ptdb & 4 bV hhtL tudh, .L . Fkt 91%'6'8, . dtua d A.I? l4 lnn &.
Suttsr cmtr o, sd &t 34 hde run W4'64 t dbbn@ ol ltt.$ let: hae gq#62 . dbt ft d
a.N ld b a. tuheu fuhl d ,.! lln ol tuL tud No. ffi, ,nd k mM tr Wu&ae: Me gc$'6E,
a Mne d 4n l* ai.na ff1a6}. .lW . tin Fdlt t ilh ,nd LQ lcet buthcdt ol fr.n nsd tL

I, &DDdo. &pia 

-

sfldois dmf,dt8

t6ht .W!@ Lo su buthq? .i6hl ol a! lh4 . &uo.. ol 1.@ leu bM Mt15'65'|, t Mne .l 1.@ t&t lo
did tulM! t$ht ol r.y h.: bn@ w1'6'8, .bry etu hrhqry rbht ol ,rt lin . . tubne d 1.9 {d b
h. Nfr OF WINillM.

fi9 dcd hE t & t.Ebr @Ul, ha trir plrt oa IrmI mm' ! . h .!d ffia nPla'htu or O. h dcdH Ftsd,
.6dry b r .u*J d. u!tu ry 4iU. dtuUo ed dFdD &d 

- 

.nC &t U! tht Mdb nU
d ,!rur rc{oftaa& d 6.ctu ln, hrL l, flod. sbbb

wrn fl smm rD roPtE
fr! i. b dlr ht I bE d.d e. pd rq @d@iq h tu?b. {n, l.il l, n.ne Sbbb,
but lrE not dd b. del db.

&&-
&dld f, (:.dt PSA IilL tqi@.i{ CMtsry
Hd@d S!ftF t &pts. & tut ft&ry r@E
l@d. C.frn .b b U?t 8d.4 fld WIq.ilr k d ruturinu@ b, I frM: fi?-&ffibb-

NoIICI: This prol, os r.co.d.d in ls g.oph]c fom, is lhe o',icio d.piclion ol lhe subdivlded oids d.sc.ibed h./.d oid *il
i^ io cncumstonces te supprontcd ii ollhorly by ony olher qroph'c or digilol lorm ol lh. pLol. Th... not be oddnroio
resklcliois lhol oi. not 

'rcord.d 
on lhls pol Ihot roy be lound l^ lh. public rccords ol thb counly.

Ar grollcd uuily.osem.nts shol oso b. aosen.nls lor lhe co^ilrucloi. insiollolion hoinlcnonce, ond oterolion ol coble

t.r.visioi scrvices. prdid&. hor.v.r, no such constucton, insto otioi, doi.lrnoic., ond op.rotion ol coble l..vsion shol

hi.lere rllh thc lo.iiti.s ond *rvic.s ol oi..ctic. l.lepho.a,gos. or olhc. pubic ullrily. i ihe *.nl o cobe lcleeison
.onpony domoq.s lhe locllitics ol o public uulily, il shol b. sol.y cspoisible lor th. domog.s This s.ctio^ sho rol
opply to those priole.o*m.nts Iroild 1o or oblo'ned by o podiculor clectic, l..pho.e,905. or olh.r public uuily.
Such consructio^, lnsloroton, moinleionce o^d operolion sho[ comp! with th. Noliono] E.cticoi Sol.ly Code os odopted
by thc Forldo Fubk s.Ric. Cohmhsio..

gr8[_llflr_tdifl
I br ne! EPEIH ht bL pLl ! tldt n6i. h bued6 or e. outri.ipdi9 ol
tlbb.. fld& rod I bw ltdd dd ?ht ia U. prdi. 6t or &q &uU n e,
bit 

- 

b! ot 

-, 

M.

;it?d;E;;izi;i--

OEIIqE-AT-@IJEIIIT
ft. rdEitrd .da e.l & fidl pl.[ ! i. lnF lod rd [r h! t! .6d.!e dU e 0Mfior Fdlu
d bc Ot/ .t til&h. Tlb .ffdud b nr& Ior & blclit ot A. Ci9
plm obc b! h filt oa fibb!.

32

@

5

TO

DUNNELLON

31

TO

ARCHER

su8trcr

J6

BRONSON

TO

TO

GAINESVILLE

TO

LEBANON
STATION

ffi

I MtE: l/En\2lTom-friT-
I roEcI ilusEP' s2ori2

I MILLS E.|{ftt!'++E+[t#fioMPANY lwrr-r-rs'rox coRNERS I

| *tu%?J*-,ffi:fHl*'* lStCTt0N 6, IoWNSH|P 15 SoUTH, MNCE 19 EASTI
1,.6*, FD{rl Cfi tr trlufl0il. ff @UXt. FLtrlU I

PRELIIVII]\IARY PLAT

21



BOUNDARY SUNVEY

for: llilliston Shopping Center Partners, f,l,C

Ia Secrion 6, ?oenship 13 South, R!n8e 19 East

kvy cou.ly. Florida

!a

tr
!6&

sS

!

Wdr builry @ @t l@td
I

-1
I

,,1

-t-
I

3

r;l
, t:
. t!
It
I'
I

I

I

L-;
ii

--f
-1

BOUNDAEY SURVEY
for

Williston Shopping Center Partners, LLC
in

Section 6, Township 13 South, Eange 19 East
Levy County, Florida

t
:i

I

I

I

I: 
-| ,--

I- MN a'

-?'

"i,!8it \
t [r#E do silE d 5@)

NORTH I
"fr'ffi,i

I

I

E

:tt
dt

ir
E!-
Ed

E

l--- 
) ,-- \

\
,!
ir
rI
a. -l

I

#:tr-- - -

d;a<'w'

__, l

C.dE rF .r d. edEr @.. d &o* 3t, il ttu hp ot tilht n .t F. drt th.drt W8
r rbr tur r, P.r r c u. tolr &.d d bry e4nl, fi@d.j u.!d Itr.6a .14 h
dq &NN d th. nbdt 4hl-.Lml hr or tdr r.!r. rF,!c & h"' s u9 Ydr.r n aka.t md I't btu sN. .
tutE d QAo kt b b..@ t0t-or..t hn oI tuUnttu M, t ndt bry tut., F e phl n ry d tturtu
b4 u. torrr d &ahqr rt.nE .lrhua s'rrba tq u. &!thd, thts&-t ! lta. ol u,s. hFnht a It r6.t , t tuu^i oI

rdt t !.4 at bt s. tue t d r.d,/h sL'a r F 41 6
Pq. 3 .I $c P!tu tuod, d Ht court Ard& lt.m Sr60lJ! 

' 
drl.rc ol tttd ldtj u.Ae ffi6\, . tune ol IA,5C

kt td h. d.d! 4F.rr.! h ry h.m a rilhdr stut .n b. rid tut .t rm. har M.tal
.h.rc ww\.h4 sd N

Bt\ . ditu^6 il 50.N tdt b t
4't ry ttu ot stu bt 15, 

' 
dlb bry wt ot zid bt ls 

'ad 
h noild! @td-nt tu zt

*rt rdl tut AEa!., Lm.d! Ctrd AEav. s Ft pttt d tu ta^. xilh tuta:6.ne W5t'\ .@ b. r.tu dt
dlFd-ru tk d AH tulba rhd tEna, . dA.ne d 67.t0 tel; dilc! r7r53!tl !d.hu4 rhq sH athdt
ddFor..t tin,. dhund.t gt,N t.rbh. Bt fu tihra-..t lk d ro@tu $ilnwlM *rrr rld. rlfil39A dr{
aid ..ddy 4Fil-lq tk , . dR Wnq. ilt tiq .d hry hird h $4id 4 ?otuDip 13
bdr, bry te bil aV d rtkh, Lry btntt, Ftdd.

hatu4 t|il t@, n E.. 16

'sP#""#^i

-wu!J:
E

ri
9:
*

w+

Mttu z'

MMA'

Se Shccl 2 !o. Suncpis Xot.s, Eda.,l blail and D.s..iption, L.eend tnd C.rtiliE Lions F.rd eo'[ ComDr.l.d.

22



BOUNDARY SURVEY

for: trilliston Shopping Center Pertners, f,LC

In Sedlion 6, To*nship 13 Soulh, Faqc 19 fast
kvv couitv, Flodda

Nn1A fi\lDl

si3 15 154
9qr1bs\lp)
Nta t634*

Ntt1555Mt

UNt

o

ts

Lt0

n

BOUNDAEY SURVEY
for

Williston Shopping .Center Partners, LLC
IN

Section 6, Township 13 South, Range 19 East
Levy County, Florida

DESCflPfloiV: For Sasements

a parcei il ),nd in Setbn 6 tor".hip 13 $ulh, Pirge 19 A.sL bry Counly, Flotu', Mry hoft particul.rt d6d&d as lollo*'
Conn.ne on th. buthcd!.tlenso' ot thc Eai trn. ol Lot 32, E16k I, lilliston Hdghk.E r..tud i. P|.t tuok 1, ptE. t ol th. publc rccods ol bry
Cosnty, flo.idt, st a poinl 101? k t South.il! ton ri. 5oulb..6l eh.. 01 $id bt @: Ih.n . 99'11'05\, l2S.@ lel; Lh.hd gA'458" E, 10@ L.I ta t
poirt o. thc &!Ln il! righL ol r.! tn al S.E. 5AA U.d. Awhu.) tnd th. Pojnt ol Bqinnq, th.nc. NEll 6'E dlry tad tutth.rb .iEhI ol Mt nne. t
d3t ae ol 5@ lel, lh.Dcc 51t45558, 5.0a h.t) lh.nc. Sl9'u6 N, 5.00 lcet: bdc. N1t15551, 5.@ lc.t to the P.ht ol BqnntB
Co"tsdq 25 squrE tdt, atr or i.ss

n rttot.- - 6.17*;i'1'*-'' (25s)

- 
g!'ry'

f
PM "E'
A $rcel ol l6nd in Sel,e 4 to,r$ip 13 Soub, f,aA. 19 ttta, Uv! Countt, Flonda hdq h..c parti.lltrl! d.*n&d as lollors:
Conn.ne on lhe Sotlhedy craebor ol th. SasL hnc ol ba SZ gl@k 1, lillislod MEhB a recoded in Plat tuok I, pqc I ol thc plblic
bunU, nodh, tl a poinl 40,1? lat tuulhcdr lrcn ll. Soube.sl coil.. ol $id Lot & thet N7gu6"t 290.55 Lel th4cc sta'4555'8,
pdnl o. th. buthqlt {dht d aa! tin at S.R s00 (Nobb Avenue) and th. Point ot gqinniry: th.rc.9s'1030\ slory ttid buthedy dght
&ance ot 5M t*t: Ih.nc. gt193?'8,5.00 leet: thene M!1030"8.5.A0 ket: hqe Nlt4ei0'1, tAA bea lo he Poi.t ot tugii.iog
tutatniq 6 q!"re let, noe o. l..s

PANEL NO 8@
in ftctioa A, foh'hip 13 Souh, Raqe 19 8asl, kV Caoary, fbnda, being nore pedtclladt

Blo.k 4, ViIbtil Heignts. 3s fted.d k Phl NORTH

sl0'45 55"8,

. pdnl M%55\, . d&n c. il 10.17 l..t Loh h. Sou&.rrl c.md ol stil bl Al t didr^cc ol 117.39 letl
th. MM 0F ECINNINC: tletc. SIO{555? .

distrnce ol 1@ let: lh.ice 579'la A5-1, tlorC . lih. p.t.llcl tLh ahd |.92 l4l tuulh.d! ol ilha h.asud .l dghl .ql.s to szid tuulhcrlr nghl ol .ar
lite, a dslarce ol 49 let: thetce ft''1555\.. dtst ne ol LQ let Lo Ntd tuuth.dy qht ot trt line, tha.. Nre\16\, .lory s.id Sauth.d! nght ol
,t! tinc, . dist.nft il 1.9 L.t to Ih. Polilf Af AEANNINC

Contdniq 4 4!.e l4t, nore o. l*s

EASEMENT DETAIL

CERTIilED TA: vittbton snopptu cerret P.rhe6. uc
$i/o.r.a, inc.
/.ucn!i! Slalr 8rr*
iliddkit tun.dicl e &ntun, UC.
bvodes, DtBdick, Mtcr khtor & tu d,
fircl Anctu.n fi|c l'Ndacc Conp.oysuRvtvoFs ivo?['s]

L Not r.lid nboul U. iba.lu.. a.d hr odSinal .r&d $,1 ol . noilda llcentd Sufttt .nd iltPP.t.
2 Addilions or dclc|ors lo lhis Nrvq n'p hy othet thon h. ngning @ttl or P.rU.s it pfthibit d dlhoua lh. dll., p..dsti.n or

3 fhe pmpetV bolndtty d5ct'tton aat trLeh ltun Wi.i6l Eecods &ok 14fi, P.Ee 613 ot the tubti. E cotds L.vt Couty, fi.rid.
4. the ..5eEenr d.scdptiorr dle tr&.. Iem qhial &ear& Book 4fi, P.g. ?8 ,nd illi.itl k6ds hak 66, p.g. 8@ ol Lh.

PtbLc kods bq CouhU, flodds.
5 tubjel Lo zoni@ ftauircn rb ..sr.rtr Est.t.lions ,d .ncunbr.nc.s ol recod
6 ,.adro a.d ddd,..s sbom hen.n t.. lield neoslted u.les othetai* aoled
Z 8..i.gs shom herco. h.re ben &rd on ,h t$ut.d b..ring ol Wtl6A tug hc .lory Lh. bub.d! tught-dt\a! lin. ol

f.sr dod. rhru., flb horn .s sl.t. Rosd do. 5@, U.S. Hishrar N.. Altc.tr|c A rnd v.S. Hishl.t No. a1) 6sed on toudd
monuhdlth.h a3 $oin ,.Eon

lEElM
ttu tuulbtuk
a tu, heilb ro!il cddc hnwat
. ER t htr F.!d 8'm tu

L fu,ubbsdMtM,w
O s& bet6 kt tA tM tu, w
6 M q4 tuidtd tuad Nnd W. h n

o )tu.d Mr.i. N.tue
6 tubw.htu
A tuBwbilhtu

+ tu.d rE ht ro tuh
q tu.btuw&
4 be.k 4ht M

a* tu.6 c" eM

lc) ttu.@ ctttuLtd
(f) tu@ frdc tu
lD) )tuk rt M t @Ph
D.a M..k H tu

0.&3. tubMMM
PI b446 M(d-ilr

omB

turild tutuJt dM tu
htutd bnb

tutdhht&tucMt
tu..ta |tutrE.h il6tu

CERTIFICAIION:
fhis it lo c.ttil! lh.t thtr nlp ir ! t!. .nd @ft.cl
ryrtsnt.tian ol t stNq tuade und.r ht Bponsiblc dir.ction
tnd sopcnbion .nd b accur.Ic lo lhc b6l ol n! knovLdg.
and belid. fhis sun.! eeers tle tundsds or Pildi.e ser
lorth by 6. nnh tu .d ol PtdNon l ild.FB .nd
uapp.6 in chtptt il-17, floAdr adninietdtiw hd., poGttrt
Io Sation 12.@?. Flo.id. Stalut6.

a
g. points h6! nol 6. .eral. it

ta.
u.

tuta Pd d ktaard

'futd@4.!@tiqtu

U.s. 8i9hr.! ila. 4t).
13. subted to a.s.rr.lions u.ro lie $.r. il Flotid. l* oil, gas, hin.ills tnd li*ionabb nalcd.b ,s @it ined in De.d Reoded

0.1ob..27, lg4 h kd tuok 41, prgc U|, d thc Pldic 8.ctu ol Ury Colnry, florid..
t1. Subj.ct to Eight..ol..ltt ta.ctu nt in lavt ol Sltle ol fl.dd. hp.tn nt ol ftanqadttion Mod.d August 4, I99t in ,Ijctul

Re@td. Eaok 3$, Ne 729, ol thc PtbL. korts ol Lev! btalt, Fldh.
15 Su4?.I ro r P.tp.tuzl E6t.h.it 6 latot ol Lhc Sble ol fLrid. hFdn.nt ol ftunVddtioi rccotu d F.btuary 15. t$s it

dfrcitt Re.otds tuok 666, paCe W, .l the tubic Recil& ol bvt hunt' Fhndz
16 Srbi.ct lo tulmdnc phFph.ter e.1s/9 nieruls .rd Fad.M rescrvalbrs b! vbluc ol ftcUan 2?0.11(t), tS rr to tl. Porlion

ol th. srbidt pmptry ascib.d in bed/Corv.rt.cc rccad.d Ut{h 11. 20t9 in M 1486, P+ 613

Fi.rd Boor 279, Po9. 6A

23



PARTIAL SET OF COflSTfiUETNN PUNS FOR PRELIIIINARY PUT APPLICATION

WililSTOlV S'fICPP/ATG CENTER
(REDEVEL1PI,IENT 0F THE F1RIIER WILLIST\N HIGH SCH\\L)

ALABA.MA GEORGIA

-PA\A/INI- ININTY

,.1rP.2.

DROITG
XUI&R
I
2

J
4
5
6
7

6
9
t0
il
12

IJ
!{
l5
t5
l7

tfscRPttrir
MLt SHETT
loEs lt{D sPtcrr mlls
ovtM[t llt Puil
r{0r ustl)
,[Rttr
cEortcHr{rn 80ft1s t6

raltr)€n
I

,+
a) I .'.

J

5
6
I

t0

cuap INAMG fiSITR - Pft!€lfl.flilI
mfiilcE usTtR - F(ET txltrHlrl
SIOfl$ItR PilUNil FfitlEilNil PUI{

C) IfIOUNil ruN
otnllr toT tlY(ME4P s'41

2- .F."
TOT I I.AYflI
tol
LOI
Lor
t-0I
t-0I

GRTU$
mA uYot I lxD GR 0i6
UYOJT
GRIOIIG
uYot I

I

tl

A
NORTH

*-ii-

2J qA PROIII- l(E.I A,t/Sn5m^'Sl7&r
21 UIrmY PUI 21

SITE MAP

6
7

$' OWNER:

E
J)
JI
J2
J3
J4
nt
J5
J7
J7A

ET'I-S
rHcrr $cillrs r - rll)r FflD yl&€r ,t t9

f t19
xtrorElWILLISTON SHOPPING CENTER PARTNERS, LLC ilflcrl' $finN 2 - [u Fmo nftGI

nPcrr sEcnq{s J - PoPtlts t0r9n
5555 SOUTH KIRKMAN ROAD, SUIII 20]

ORLANDO, FLORIOA 32819
wPf,lr stcltoiE a - PoF[Yfs rdrsrM mcfltlr
nHcll.
nPr{

sECrulls
stcrDis

5 - o'@[tY 
^l,T06 - o'ftIrY 
^l,I0ro 7-lmsmYsIoE

NORTH

al r.0l . uflDscrPf pu{

LOCATION MAP
CONSTRUCTION SruL BE GOVERNED gT THE PROJECT SPECIFICAIIONS

ANO THESE CONSTRUCTION ORAWINGS. REFERENCE IS UDE TO FDOI
"STNOARD SPECIFIGqIOilS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCIION.
ANO fDOT 

.DEgGJ\] 
STANMRDS. (FDOI INI)TX). I.ATEST TOJTIONS.

orlffirunstrwrurwoM@dffira&trsEw[remu&[cm ffiHm&dffior.Mr6strrutomsM[
MTMENmUmNh E0U?ot@Srdrc14, s[uilw.MduMrlM

D

.rl'rI_Er s I{ E: E:.IrIYILLISTON SHOPPING CENTER
V{ILLISTOIN HS REDEVELOPMENT

24



=i€A
:-\Sl

,-

a=e,

EO

Bq
@
Bg

mml'tPR,ELII\4I\TARY PLAT

SITE ZONING _ C2

3.3{ ACRTS

LOT 1

1.94 TCRES

LOT 2

2.17 ACRES '8

s

LOT J

E
!

d

s

I

I

a
I

s!tst

s

s

g

{
s

ttJ
:lltt:

I

!-

s

c

W[.L1S'rOff COR]VERS PIdI B00r _, Ptc[ _
PACE 2 0F 2

LYll\rG IN S:[C?|0N 6, Tonilsflp r3 SoUTrr, RfiVctr 19 f,rs?
cnY 0f rIItJsI0tr, coui\Ily 0t Lryy, sTAlf, 0r I'r,0RtDt

zoilltc - cr

fl, Jo ; ; ; : lrn ,' ,f ir;oi : ; i I i i !o! lloi
- I tt jsi i : i i I ! .lEE,, ' i r

...-._-,-_i,_______l___i____l___i_ .:...! .t l.__i_!gl,___i_-_J--._i._-:-__

zfirre - ct zfrN

i isi $i;i I'i i i i i i i /@i
jef. i ! ] I :

o

!IEI!
@ @ @

u.s. H|0H$AY 27
^rTERMrr 

(SIATE R0AD 500) (trEST MBG AVENUE) (8o',R^)
8'AMMEftfiffi

lffir er ra 4
q
ls

5 zmo - ar

s
\
u

\

F

!
i

I
T

&K cl

d{'

tt
Jr.-s ct

b

rn

t
;

,Y

I

E
e

o

zfrfrc - R?

o zfrrxG

sv/ rst AWNUE (cNURcH AVTNUE)
ad rtt$st 

S1t tsT Ay$iuE (cHuRcH A\ENUE)
*N-ott@ww

@ @ ffiro@
:ilrm - F2

a
F @ *'@

zoilrc - n2

uxpum

e
zstNc - R2

lOtESr

t.fuiry$ontuhNrtuMail@tunq
ot Sn('6Ytu)Mtu\ bs.@t/ W4-krM d
b W./M (oho hofi c sew M. W U.5 twv
M. 27 &@d. N u.t frNV b- 41) @ il @ bcirtu.

2. btu!6.NatM&dedUl@,
! wffit Cdd Wb (rcP) W ! !d rnh I W db t6t ,tot B q6d.

CURVE TABLE
]@E 4DffiE UTMm m[@un ffi-c+Y
ru ffi6ffim ry6@{b c@

tpl ilrffi(r| @@
il w*eMpoFI4 MdRffBfi"I ffi@M

I
ap$s

ftftttMmffiWrul@gl@W
@ M !t mm' s Mt.dt€ 2ffi AJ ffiA's_[ rn12\iB 

'D& $- rzgf !r.'srbt6 M eJf 9ftttf rJ sr2lsrC6 6d srr'[rfrf sb {srJelct m c,2a rmtg t,f sDrsglil rad &s r&l2t e,?2 ef rzsts {s d gmb' s/ grt'sl
cro rs si F./Jr s Nxatcn !& J9,l sds rctd sBgacr? !fl 5$ s./rl s3 wt.tCIJ Es M ESr.' sr' Mdoicr{ as s$ m{' srr' $jtfcrl {s € vr6fr'Ff *q/btcr6 as rarl srlt9' i?s. 9a!ft

5
6

I

N7910 S"8
OETAL A

MWM 6@ffieB.lEA CU6ke&ntmr Pmotifi^
MWNa[Ei*mia!rcm

OTTAIL B o rru6NDo(t&s)
@ ffi@EsM

12

25



1,,,
I iri

t lll

t"t

ri

i+r
"H i | :: ll

i=l i

'rl-.-,--1,-
]J.]u'ls f flil

e

g o*

I]JUJS t ttN

j
doz
t
cf

=
I

6
e;
2l

4Juts 
s

tt
l

EE$ E
:8€ c! F

l!:ElaB

EEEEEEE

;;EiEEE

65EE;EE

uiElEeEi

5

E

F

3

E

I

z
lJvuull H19 41S

t-'l
.lJJdts

z

'cFt5;
x;lu
fs:i

i;:ilr
.. {E

F:;6H

9 41s

I'

oqF
o

I

,i],',
2
{
a

N

o

a

0

Aa&
SIUVd O].NV

lrEU,0
a

FEtJ

aEt
F5B{

ril

ao
I-

o=

/lJuls I 4fi

:-=EE;"
Or;ad

z
J
0.

F]
F
u

F1

J

&
t'l

0

tr
frl
Fz
trl=

(Jo
>d
=>A5*H
tE
Az
26oi
F=a
FI
J-

F

26



+

-

$
'i

I

-:_:sri
zd

3-:

$'

*'
+

t'
.:

*

!
'l

J

.. ree61l1'=*.--

ii

13
q-,

II

/t'15
iSvudLl Htg

iili'
![

'lLa:

'rl@i

F
a
p

q

FF 'i,r$tis

L

t
z

+t 4

a

"[r:

hdsq

tt.

4-I

il

(
H

il

trl
E

(

&
rt
FzriL

sB
zd
0.8 -
Eep

Azo
7*-
oi
F=a
JJ
F

I

s

27



OE
oa

- iji$i.
t8- -- -'
H-H-"tr tr'w "w H" H"tr s w il H.w

-W H: 
"W :Il ff -u',ft| ,ffli-.ft} .lllr ,Sli-$}

69 frr fu fu n!o, t@ !@ !@ a@ TM

# 'E*fi :: l;;

."&'$ 'fi 
€ l

ffi
B:
E

,.. B_
F+trt
pr, -..r$li ..

"tu-,,*tu ",+

arF
ana

t*,,*-,*Jfr or

,a"a"aa"fr
^il| u H n- !t

ll_ t i_ ,L 'x
0?q os i 0& otr 0$9 i

Tm.r?TMa*t6trr

l'

I

!E.4.4Arld/F t'E
dndd'r'rud', aa

*,,**.-'lx or

-- -- -1"'-

fr,k A A,f J;
3!znuifa&LIol

n@06:M!':@R tm.'!@qfr

,6,H = J,"H ,n:E .fr,n l,
--i-.lll- --"11- ---EL -:::lL - ---];l..-- .-J.0EtelrSa$'l5l

xro/B!!.@rBsdE rYafrr@fi.dBtOqTrrt-2fr
rddlrt.@Btd9arvt-zBM/&rr.m&t0ErIt-tfr

ffi

-- tr tr* '.H '-+tgi E- .ds
,*.-,;t;s-s- it H f4 * ff Fv4H.W**"*,,#i.*s - E- -- H- --.*--*"xr , Fi H. ,..11 ') H 11 H

- ff S- -- itP - FF -''B+: rEF
^:r-"s#if:ifi#'o ffi "tr W n*ffi ffi
s-*:-df.{ffi.,o Wt;-_WtJ'W, ffr,- fl.r, ffr,
lxFv,F,tr*r]d 06

J3;391#i"i,illflgoa rm Rm !@ !@ !@ loe

.$i#i"

H* * ,H i'
H__ ,6__"H __1,

"H I'M 'n IH ,.11 ._-...UtH o+l .tJ f
o.G- "al!_ 3- 1"

tm tm t6

F

t1

OE

dvtrl SJIS

llwmffiilxsrsr/offiIM6rd/lr/rItruRrmu&ro
MMOMilfiM]trOWW

lffiXffiru0]Nmrmo|w

w*GE ha*offiN-mdffiSIfrSMO!&l]fufufuffiffM
rdda @ft rato &r rJfu &m&as ]vf@@ e etur& rrmft off sr **

dfti

Grssofrm(!!9<
ulllMx@&9-rs

s]mreLr00tlffirffi

ffi

sRfrru&ffitsgffikremstulrt6r$Mrl&ffiqtula

" 
t"19

,o^,'tiio 
*

-;66
HIUON

V

tl
I

]M SCNIIIOS .I\/CINHJSJOSC INlndol]^lolu sH Nrols|r]ril
USJNSJ CNIddOHS NOJSIIIIII

28



t

*-:;

I

I

I
I

500

PRE_DEVELOPMENT DRAINAGE MAP

+

+

L

+

-i

+

WILLISTON SHOPPING CENTER
V{ILLISTON HS REDEVELOPMENT

+

Jf

{ ,*r,* t

t

cwsresturuGlff@{

a I
I .'--'-..".,i

I

\
I
I

I

I

I

,.r--.t'"_"'^"r, r.r.: i. i
1t:, , i

I
.{g{.ig

I

I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I

I
!

)

JOYCE BULLOCK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
I

ffiFmWil E ffin @ $ffi t 16 t*qEsrc ffi.
n@ ffi c#mD yrvTre rr n pffiffi N 

'0lx/!r9 
rr @Ie rru€Rr

rffifrrw ffEpRffi@r tN dl@ffiffi

16 ff trm $&E rr R2-1 A0 m a N 0 @ acuuiffi us*
N m 2 tr@ lmD 2.-rcW il$& Nn&rfr rn A rcrA UrA d 10,6 ffiB,
H m ffi ffi@ rEsmns@f &D @ GE& Elm tm
m2-r @6 ffiM N ffid S'l@[ O M mr SrR ffi SMK Sr E @ S-

.EE.LJ.QH.|IAAI<--ALQ-IE5 j t

k&kddYksd
tu.futl@q$l,bqq

29



I

J

I

I

I

I

I

I

DA4

SE lST AVTNUI

.t..t.l'.t.

500

mw ar=s ilrmtrMtE.nS

ALDI

EL.6J

0

4U DRM

POST-DEVELOPMENT DRAINAGE MAP

<-

--cr'-

2nEP

E1

NTERWILLISTON SHOPPING CE
VIILLISTON HS REDEVELOPMENT

O.REILLY

R

r& ff tr@ srE,M

0R2

I

DA4Y

II g9

iia.r'- |
,'1"(:),l

I

I
I
t

I
I

I

I

I
I

I

I
I
I
I
I

,n--.-t"' " '\, _F.1a
'',-j \

f )
I

JOYCE BUTLOCK ETEMTNTARY SCHOOL

qr&6smFfts&|!@0cl@'
f

BENCHMAR< NOTES: rm w @ srE €m 0 068il wrffi usrxc tr
w 2 

^ro 
w@ n-NilR we oEnilm rfr a bItr

maDM u. mR@ E sns RmY5 n nt ffi0r6l doffi
m0 ure nM E u 5wt sls D nl mr ffi strI
*tuEnlErus66mNMmoffiqro
ft otow r0 srdE Rms$m msril 5 16M ftfimtr{r{Erffi)
CNffi Ffi DN ilE OD WI ffi N€ J @ IO @ A ff S IM tr Eolm
ft{E W Mrffi S r. I .. A !, U, rS AM & Hd6 BU N S@fmt WA dSn&US
N Bt mE 2 MU lmo 21-M Sr.

r. hliffitul'|'@hhnbtctuffiW
65W',tu 1U,.9,@tuMdW tM

2. d-t i. M d e e @E) b e 6dd M@ h
turficStdlr.4@@tu.IDEt.:

t &'-2.. td d d & (aD i E E6t 4 il Fl.d
dYtu5Fl@rkhd*.r: !

4 a-J 6 o d d d e @E) n 4@r or tutu d
Hee'dsft9d (e4eWu
ffid@N),&dtutbdnb

u sI-45 0 sr-t
u ffi Nnq 6rM^r Numm 4u il sw fl mlM

Rl WU-UPUEmtrdSda

30



PfKNC MU

EUm
EXISTIM

REIM
EX6nNC
8UtDrrc

DElvlOI-ITIOl\T PI-ANI

UNE)

7
uTtLfiESRexffi

(w ar

NTERWILLISTON SHOPPING CE
I1ILLISTON HS REDEVELOPMENT

a
5

t

w\28 6.@',

tt
I

?

a

-S+ATE R€AD 5€O

I

!

t

I

=q

im
I

!

I>l

I
I

I
I
I

I
I
I

I
I
I
I

a

r. RM & affi rt]M r0 frE ruRr u6 or&sE Mru.
2. ffi f,ffi FNdt S Orffi ffi O iro n W r [Ar Smdr €ffi.
I SW frEmt r0 Em 0 frt Mrff wsrPo,lJ@O UB UY fuT T MI trtr E M SI ilERffi W

re ffRl,m. M&UnU6 t6@ffi @tr., 0m ru*ft@ffX lt@,SrdlaD tq (M&
wF ro mr sreN ffi srfl r0 twrc M cru&- u

5, CilrgFtrrusnn$w@ru{'
6. Enr0 ffiu m ordrrd ffi ceMd @ {RtW

Fm xFffmffi ws r0 &Ecr mtr M m M a0 wqrau,
tM ru * @Etax@ @ lo srm* ffi m uY@ m{t6.

JOYCE BULLOCK ELEMENIARY SCHOOL

I
tt

'xg,{ig
*-ii=*

I
I
I

I
I

u mrum
RI DME T iM6E

31



t
i

I

.-1-1-- -

d

!

N

=q!

i

I

!

SW lST AVENUE

Ee

=

!
d

E
a

I
II

I

I

I
.{s{lg

I

I
I
I
I

I ..'.---.:
i '-'-------

I
I
I
I

1_ m sm m au€ft & ffi D E srE ff M or 6 lusn
2. CdIKId SI 6oWE E ru il f W UruN6 Ifr Bt UUT

a. pw 6 ffiE[0 m br s u 6P&r d m sEy rMr UYERMDrcFWAAffiNftMSB,
t drKwslM&Lraffffi tr tr5r@ @uF

FEffiIMIMfUCfi6MB
m 

'Mr 
rc @m N 49 sr rd M {uhd ddr) (6 

'@ 
rcr ti)

mtraSdrdd
& ffirfs @ED.rs h! sram $ rjM

ALDI
*t*n6

000

-

SE 1ST AVENUE

-$dTI R€AD 5EO

d
E

_ US'7 AL+ NOBtt

t

MD?VM

TRACTOR SUPPLY CC

I D^la: 9/11/?Dm

imLw
I <HFd 7!

O\/ERALL L'TILITY PLAN
r Mrr.r.s ENcTNEE_E!!9=IOUE4NI lwtll_IstoN sHopplNc cENTERfr D$w@orI,/'ol&!l -------------ffiiiF .il ftFM&.trENilEdstwftmrqeilsrt4gMl mFlEi'"a-n%#%SiwmE I WILLISToN HS REDMLoPMENT

ftKE aDr ft !0/27l:m 1,",r'. #: q;l;;; 
-h.,.1 silrsld Fr

32



This Instrument Prepared By

Williston Shopping Center Partners, LLC
5555 S. Kirkman Road, Ste. 201

Orlando, FL 32819

DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS, COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

THIS DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS, COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS
(the "Declaration") is made this _ day of February, 2021 by WILLISTON SHOPPING
CENTER PARTNERS, LLC, a Florida limited liability company ("WSCP") (hereinafter
referred to as "Declarant").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Declarant is the fee simple owner of that certain real property situate in the
City of Williston, Levy County, Florida, as more particularly described as follows:

See Exhibit "A" attached hereto (hereinafter referred to as the "Subject Propertv"); and

WHEREAS, Declarant intends that the Subject Properly be developed, improved,
occupied, used and enjoyed as a development to be known as Williston Corners (the "Csn19!"), as

conceptually depicted on the Site Plan attached as Exhibit "B" (the "egn19l_$!g_P.!94"), which
shall be suitable for commercial development and other related purposes; and

WHEREAS, Declarant desires that the Subject Property shall be encumbered by these
covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements and reservations;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and provisions hereof, Declarant
hereby declares that the Subject Property shall be and is hereby encumbered by and made subject
to the covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements and reservations hereinafter set forth, to wit:

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Declaration, the following terms shall have the definitions and
meanings as hereinafter set forth:

1.1 ACCESS DRMS shall mean generally those driveways and curb-cuts (including
related off-site improvements, if any) to be constructed within the Subject Property as depicted on
the Center Site Plan. An Access Drive shall not be deemed to include drive aisles within parking
areas on a Parcel, unless such drive aisles directly connect with another Parcel or a public right-
of-way. For the avoidance of doubt, Access Drives shall be limited to those driveways identified
as such on Exhibits B. As Parcels hereafter develop, Declarant may modiff Exhibit B by
Amendment hereto to designate additional Access Drives.

1.2 DECLARANT shall mean and refer to Williston Shopping Center Partners, LLC

33



1.3 DECLARATION shall mean and refer to this Declaration of Easements,
Covenants and Restrictions and all amendments and modifications hereto as are from time to time
recorded in the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

1.4 IMPROVEMENTS shall mean and refer to any man-made changes to the natural
condition of the Subject Property including, and without limitation, structures of any kind (whether
above or below the land surface), fences, walls, signs, sewers, lighting, drains, lakes waterways,
roads, utilities, grading and landscaping.

1.5 OCCUPANT shall mean and refer to any person or organization which has
occupied, purchased, leased, rented or is otherwise licensed or legally entitled to occupy and/or
use any Parcel of land on the Subject Property (whether or not such right is exercised), as well as

their respective successors and/or assigns.

1.6 OWNER shall mean and refer to one or more persons or entities who or which are
alone or collectively the record owner of fee simple title to any Parcel of land within the Subject
Property, including the Declarant, and all of their respective tenants, lessees, successors and/or
assigns.

1.7 PARCEL OR LOT shall mean and refer to any area within the Subject Property
designated as a Parcel or Lot on the Site Plan attached as Exhibit "B", together with any and all
improvements thereon. The terms "Parcel" and "Lot" may be used interchangeably.

1.8 RESTRICTED or PROHIBITED USES shall mean those uses identified on
Exhibit "C" hereto

1.9 SUBJECT PROPERTY shall mean and refer to that certain real property located
in the City of Williston, Levy County, Florida, owned by the Declarant and more particularly
described on Exhibit o'A" attached hereto.

1.10 SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT or
DISTRICT or SWFWMD shall mean the Southwest Florida Water Management District and/or
any other government authority or agency having or asserting jurisdiction, either concurrently or
as a successor, with respect to matters concerning water usage, storage, conveyance or other
surface water or stormwater management issues.

l.l1 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM shall mean a system which is
designed, constructed or implemented to control discharges which are necessitated by rainfall
events, incorporating methods to collect, convey, store, absorb, inhibit, treat, use or reuse water to
prevent or reduce flooding, overdrainage, environmental degradation, and water pollution or
otherwise affect the quantity or quality of discharges.

ARTICLE 2
OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES

The covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements and reservations set forth in this
Declaration are hereby imposed upon the Subject Property for the following objectives and
purposes, to wit:

2

34



(a) to ensure that the development of the Center will proceed pursuant to a
common plan of development with, among other things, (i) consistent Access Drives, and
(ii) a separate Stormwater Management System for each respective Parcel;

(b) to provide for the future management, administration, care, maintenance,
regulation and preservation of the Storm Water Management Systems and the Access
Drives within the Center; and

(c) to impose certain restrictions on the use of Parcels within the Center

ARTICLE 3
EFFECT OF DECLARATION

3.1 Cf)VENANTS RUNNING WITH LAND This Declaration and each and every
one of the easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations contained herein are
hereby declared to be, and shall hereafter continue as, covenants running with the title to those
portions of the Subject Property upon which the same are hereby imposed as an encumbrance.

3.2 PROPERTY AFFECTED. This Declaration and the easements, covenants,
conditions, restrictions and reservations set forth herein shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit
of and constitute a burden upon all of the Subject Properly in accordance with the terms set forth
herein. Accordingly, as more particularly specified in this Declaration all Parcels of land within
the Subject Properfy shall hereafter be owned, held, transferred, sold, conveyed, demised, devised,
assigned, leased, mortgaged, occupied, used and enjoyed subject to and benefited and burdened
by the terms and provisions of this Declaration and each of the easements, covenants, conditions,
restrictions and reservations contained herein.

3.3 PARTIES AFFECTED. Except as hereinafter specifically provided, this
Declaration shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of all Owners of the Subject Property,
including the Declarant, and all other persons having or claiming any right, title or interest in such
property. Accordingly, each and every person or party who or which shall hereafter acquire, have
or claim any right, title or interest in any Parcel of land within the Subject Property, whether by,
through or under the Declarant or any subsequent Owner, shall, by virhre of the acceptance of any
such right, title, interest or claim, whether by deed or other instrument, or by operation of law or
otherwise, and whether voluntarily or involuntarily, be deemed to have acquired and accepted such
right, title, interest or claim in or to any Parcel ofthe Subject Property subject to and benefited and
burdened by the easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations set forth in this
Declaration.

ARTICLE 4

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

4.1.1 INTENT. Declarant intends that a separate Stormwater Management
System be constructed on each respective Parcel if and to the extent required by the District.

4.I.2 MAINTENANCE OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS.
Each Parcel Owner shall be obligated to maintain the Stormwater Management System on its
respective Parcel in a first-class condition and state of repair, free of overgrowth and algae, and

3

35



otherwise in strict compliance with all applicable regulations of the District. In the event
Declarant, or any Parcel Owner including Declarant (the "Non-breaching Parcel Owner"),
reasonably believes that a pond has not been maintained to required standards and such failed
maintenance jeopardizes or is reasonably believed to jeopardize such Non-breaching Parcel
Owner's permit for the pond on its respective Parcel, the Non-breaching Parcel Owner may
provide notice to the Parcel Owner (the "Breaching Parcel Owner") of its default, and in the event
such default is not cured by the Breaching Parcel Owner within thirty (30) days after such notice,
the Non-breaching Parcel Owner shall be entitled to enter the Breaching Parcel Owner's Parcel to
perform the required maintenance. Following the completion of the maintenance by the Non-
breaching Parcel Owner, the Non-breaching Parcel Owner may invoice the Breaching Parcel
Owner for the reasonable cost of performing the maintenance plus an administrative fee equal to
ten percent (10%) of such reasonable cost of performing such maintenance, which such invoice
shall be paid by the Breaching Parcel Owner within thirty (30) days. In the event the Breaching
Parcel Owner fails to pay the invoice within thirty (30) days, the Non-breaching Parcel owner may
file a lien on the Breaching Parcel Owner's interest in the Parcel pursuant to Section 10.1 hereof.

ARTICLE 5
ACCESS; PARIilNG

5.1 ACCESS EASEMENTS. Declarant hereby declares and creates, for the benefit
of the Owners and their tenants, occupants, customers and/or invitees, of all or any portion of the
Subject Properfy, a non-exclusive and perpetual easement for pedestrian and vehicular (including
without limitation tractor trailer delivery trucks) ingress, egress and access in common with others,
over, upon and across the Access Drives depicted on the Center Site Plan and identified as such
on Exhibit "B".

5.2 MAINTENANCE OF ACCESS DRMS. Each Parcel Owner shall be obligated
to maintain the Access Drives on their respective Parcel in first-class, good, clean condition and
state of repair, and in strict compliance with all applicable regulations of the City of Williston. In
the event Declarant, or any Parcel Owner including Declarant (the "Non-breaching Pard
Owner"), believes that an Access Drive has not been maintained to required standards, the Non-
breaching Parcel Owner may provide notice to the Parcel Owner (the Parcel
of its default, and in the event such default is not cured by the Breaching Parcel Owner within
thirty (30) days after such notice, the Non-breaching Parcel Owner shall be entitled to enter the
Breaching Parcel Owner's Parcel to perform the required maintenance. Following the completion
of the maintenance by the Non-breaching Parcel Owner, the Non-breaching Parcel Owner may
invoice the Breaching Parcel Owner for the reasonable cost of performing the maintenance plus
an administrative fee of ten percent (10%), which such invoice shall be paid by the Breaching
Parcel Owner within thirty (30) days. In the event the Breaching Parcel Owner fails to pay the
invoice within thirty (30) days, the Non-breaching Parcel owner may file a lien on the Breaching
Parcel Owner's interest in the Parcel pursuant to Section 10.1 hereof.

4

36



5.3 USB AND MODIFICATION OF ACCESS DRMS. Notwithstanding the
rights granted in this Article 5, no user of such rights shall interfere with, block, impede or
otherwise impair the business operations on any Parcel or any parking, access or traffic flow to or
on any Parcel. No Owner shall alter, relocate or obstruct access on any portion of the Access
Drives without the prior written consent of the other Owners, except (i) in the event of an
emergency, (ii) in the event that such Owner, upon the advice of its legal counsel, needs to close
such Access Drives to prevent the public from acquiring any rights to same, (iii) for repairs to such
Access Drives, provided a reasonable alternative means of access is provided during such period
of repair, or (iv) if required by any govemmental authority.

5.4 NO CROSS PARKING EASEMENTS. There shall specifically be no cross
parking rights or easements between the Parcels. All Parcels located within the Subject Property
shall independently meet any governmental requirements with respect to minimum parking space
requirements without utilizing or including any parking spaces or areas located on any other Parcel,
unless agreed to in a separate written agreement between the Owners owning the Parcel sharing
such parking spaces or areas. Each Owner shall have the right to use any means available to it,
including the right to lawfully tow unauthorized vehicles and post signs regarding parking
restrictions, to enforce its right to control the use of parking spaces upon its Parcel.

ARTICLE 6
UTILITY EASEMENTS

6.1 GENERALLY. Subject to the terms set forth herein, the Declarant hereby declares
and creates for the benefit of each Owner and its tenants or occupants of a portion of the Subject
Property a non-exclusive, perpetual easement for the purposes of installing, using, maintaining,
repairing and replacing required underground storm sewer lines, sanitary sewer pipes, irrigation
pipes, water and gas mains, electric power lines, telephone lines, cable television and other
communication lines and all other utility lines, wires, pipes, and conduits (collectively, "Utility
Lines" and each individually, a "Utility Line") which may from time to time be necessary or
convenient to serve development of each Parcel, but only to the extent that it is reasonably
necessary for a Parcel Owner to construct such lines outside the boundaries of its Parcel. The
location and manner of installation of such Utility Lines and corresponding easement(s) shall be
subject to approval by the Owner of the burdened Parcel and provided further that all work in
connection with the foregoing (i) shall not materially interfere with or diminish the utility service
to the burdened Lot; (ii) shall be performed without cost or expense to the burdened Owner;
(iii) shall have been approved by the provider of such service and the appropriate governmental or
quasi-governmental agencies having jurisdiction; and (iv) shall be diligently pursued to prompt
completion and not materially adversely impact the burdened Owner's Lot or the use or operation
thereof. It shall be reasonable for the Owner of a burdened Parcel to object to such Utility Line if
the location of which is not located within ten (10) feet of the boundary line of such burdened
Owner's Parcel. Further, the Owner of the burdened Parcel shall have the right, at any time, to
relocate any of the benefited Owners' Utilify Lines located on its Parcel upon thirly (30) days prior
written notice to the benefited Owner; provided, however, that such relocation (A) shall not
materially interfere with or diminish the utility service to the benefitted Parcel; (B) shall not reduce
or unreasonably impair the usefulness or function of such Utility Line(s); (C) shall be performed
without cost or expense to the benefitted Owner; (D) shall be completed using materials and design
standards which equal or exceed those originally used; (E) shall have been approved by the

5

37



provider of such service and the appropriate governmental or quasi-governmental agencies having
jurisdiction; and (F) shall be diligently pursued to prompt completion and not materially adversely
impact the burdened Owner's Parcel or the use or operation thereof. Upon an Owner's installation
of any such Utility Line(s) and related facilities over another Owner's Parcel, the benefited Owner
shall, at its sole cost and expense, restore such area ofthe affected property to the condition that
existed immediately prior to the date in which such work was performed.

ARTICLE 7
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ACCESS

7.1 GENERALLY. The Declarant hereby declares and creates for the benefit ofeach
Owner and its tenants, occupants, customers andlor invitees of a portion of the Subject Properly a
non-exclusive temporary construction easement over the property adjacent to such Owner's Parcel
to the extent needed in accordance with good construction practices, but only during a period of
construction on the Parcel, for the purpose of providing a temporary means of access for
construction vehicles to and from the Parcel. All construction activities undertaken by Parcel
Owner shall not interfere with, intemrpt or affect the business activities conducted on another
Parcel within the Subject Property. The Parcel Owner entering another Parcel shall be responsible,
at its sole cost and expense, for restoring such area ofthe affected property to the condition that
existed immediately prior to the date in which such work was performed.

ARTICLE 8
PARCEL MAINTENANCE

8.1 OWNRR MAINTENAN CE RESPONSIBILITIES Owners of any Parcel of
land within the Subject Property, together with the Occupants thereof, shall jointly and severally,
have the duty and responsibility, at their sole cost and expense, to keep such Parcel, including all
buildings, improvements, driveways, roadways, parking areas, signs and landscaping located
thereon and used in connection therewith, in a well-maintained, safe, clean and attractive condition
at all times, consistent with other first-class developments within the generally vicinity of the
Subject Property. Prior to construction on any Parcel, the Owner shall keep the Parcel seeded and
mowed in an aesthetically pleasing condition (except during active construction) and strictly
comply with requirements of the City of Williston.

8.2 ENFORCEMENT. If, any Owner or Occupant has failed to discharge any of the
herein prescribed maintenance duties or responsibilities, then any other Parcel Owner may give
such Owner or Occupant written notice of such failure and such person must, on or before thirty
(30) days after receiving such notice, commence and thereafter diligently pursue to completion the
care and maintenance required. Should any such Owner or Occupant fail to discharge this duty
and responsibility within such period, then the notifying Parcel Owner, upon not less than five (5)
days prior written notice of intent to do so, shall have the right and power to enter upon the
premises and perform such care and maintenance without any liability for damages for wrongful
entry, trespass or otherwise to any person or entity. The Owners and Occupants for which such
work is performed shall jointly and severally be liable for the cost of such work and shall promptly
reimburse the performing Parcel Owner for such cost plus an administrative fee of ten percent
(10%). If such Owner or Occupant shall fail to reimburse the performing Parcel Owner on or
before thirty (30) days after its receipt of a statement for such work, then said indebtedness shall

6

38



be a debt of all of said persons jointly and severally, and upon compliance by the Parcel Owner
with the filing procedures set forth under Section 10.1 hereof, shall constitute a lien against the
Parcel on which said work was performed.

ARTICLE 9
INTENTIONALLY OMITTED

ARTICLE 10

NON.PAYMENT OF MAINTENANCE INVOICES

10.1 DELINOUENCY. NON-PAYMENT OF MAINTENANCE EXPENSES. In
the event a Parcel Owner is entitled, pursuant to Sections 4,1.2,5.2 or 8.2 hereof, to file a lien
against a Parcel, the procedure as set forth in Sections 10.2 to 10.5 shall apply to the lien for the
expenses incurred by such Parcel Owner.

10.2 NOTICE OF LIEN. The Owner entitled to the lien shall be entitled to cause a
Claim of Lien for such delinquent payment to be filed among the Public Records of Levy County,
Florida. Any such Claim of Lien shall, among other things, state and identify the legal description
of the Parcel against or with respect to which the lien is claimed, the name of the record Owner of,
such Parcel as best known to the filing Owner, the amount of the lien claimed, including interest,
late charges, and costs and expenses associated with collection, including attorneys' fees, if any,
accrued to the date of the execution of such Claim of Lien.

10.3 FORECLOSURL OF ASSESSMENT LIEN. At any time subsequent to the
filing of the aforesaid Claim of Lien among the Public Records of Levy County, Florida against
or with respect to a particular Parcel, but only upon an additional 60 days' notice and failure to
cure by any such delinquent Owner, the Declarant or filing Owner shall be entitled to bring an
action in the Circuit Court in and for Levy County, Florida to foreclose the lien for delinquent
payments evidenced by such Claim of Lien in the same manner as mortgage liens are foreclosed.
Any judicial sale pursuant to such foreclosure action shall be conducted as ordered by the Court
or in accordance with the provisions of Section 45.03 I Florida Statutes, as amended or replaced
from time to time. The Declarant or filing Owner shall have the right and power to bid at any
foreclosure sale with respect to any lien foreclosed by it using its judgment for the delinquent
Assessment or its own funds, and if the successful bidder at such foreclosure sale, to acquire, own,
hold, lease, sell, mortgage and convey any Parcel upon or with respect to which it has foreclosed
its lien for delinquent Assessments.

10.4 COLLECTION FROM OWNER. The Declarant or filing Owner shall, at any
time following the delivery of the aforesaid notice of delinquency, also be entitled to bring an
action at law for the recovery and collection of such delinquent Assessment in the Circuit Court
of the Judicial Circuit in and for Levy County, Florida against the Owner of the Parcel personally
obligated for the payment of such delinquent Assessment. Each Owner of a Parcel, by the
acceptance of a deed or other conveyance of the Parcel owned by such Owner shall be deemed to
have agreed and consented to the jurisdiction of said Court over the person of such Owner for
purposes of any action at law for the recovery and collection of any delinquent Assessment for the
payment of which such Owner is personally obligated.

7

39



10.5 JUDGMENT AMOUNT. Whether in an action at equity to foreclose the lien of
the Declarant for delinquent payments or in an action at law for the recovery and collection of any
such delinquent Assessment from the Owner of the Parcel personally obligated for the payment of
the same, the Declarant or filing Owner shall be entitled to recover in such proceedings the amount
of such delinquent Assessment, together with late charges and interest thereon, if any, and such
costs and expenses, including reasonable attomeys'fees, associated with the enforcement, recovery
and collection thereof as may be awarded by the Court.

10.6 REMEDIES CUMULATIVE. The remedies herein provided for the collection
and enforcement of Assessments and the foreclosure of the lien therefor shall be cumulative and
not altemative; it being expressly provided that any suits brought for the collection of delinquent
payments against the Owner personally obligated and liable for the payment of the same and for
the foreclosure of the lien herein provided against the Parcel involved may be brought
simultaneously as separate counts in the same action.

ARTICLE 11

AMENDMENT

11.1 AMENDMENT BY DECLARANT. Until the Declarant no longer owns any
Parcel (the "Turnover Date"), the terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, restrictions and
reservations set forth in this Declaration may be changed, amended or modified from time to time
by the Declarant in its sole discretion and without requiring the joinder or consent of any person
or party whosoever, provided any such change, amendment or modification does not adversely
affect any Owner's use of its Parcel, its financial obligations hereunder, or its rights, obligations
and protections with respect to its Parcel or its rights under this Declaration. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Declarant shall not have the right to modifu the restrictions set forth on Exhibit "C"
attached hereto without the unanimous consent of all Owners.

ll.2 AMENDMENTS. The terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, restrictions and
reservations as set forth in this Declaration may only be changed, amended or modihed at any time
and from time to time in writing by the Declarant (during (and only during) the time in which it
owns any Parcel within the Subject Property) and the affirmative written consent or vote of Owners
owning not less than seventy-five percent (7 5%) of the Subj ect Property; provided, however, ( I )
that any amendment to the Declaration prior to the Turnover Date, as set forth under Section 1 1.1,
shall only be effective with the Declarant's express written joinder and consent and (2) that any
amendment or modification increasing obligations or adversely impacting or affecting an Owner,
including without limitation the rights, protections and easements granted hereunder, shall only be
effective with such affected Owner's express written joinder and consent.

ARTICLE 12
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

The Subject Property shall be subject to the following restrictions, reservations and
conditions which shall be binding upon each and every Owner (except for the Declarant for as

long as the Declarant shall own Parcels in the Center) and its heirs, personal representatives,
tenants, invitees, successors and assigns, as follows:

8

40



l2.l LANDSCAPING Landscaping on each Parcel and stormwater drainage and
retention features located on such Parcel shall be continuously maintained in a first-class, good,
aesthetically pleasing condition by the Owner thereof. Owners shall maintain their landscaping
by mowing and edging to prevent overgrowth and trees and shrubbery shall be maintained to
prevent obstruction of roads and walkways. All landscaped and grassed areas on each Parcel shall
be watered by means of an automatic underground sprinkler system which shall be employed so

as to keep all vegetation in such condition as is consistent with the balance of the Center.
Landscaping shall be installed prior to occupancy or completion of any buildings (as evidenced by
a certificate of occupancy or its equivalent), whichever occurs first.

12.2 OBNOXIOUS OR OFFENSIVE ACTMTY. No activify which is considered
obnoxious or offensive by local ordinances shall be allowed upon the Subject Property, nor shall
any use or practice be allowed which interferes with the peaceful possession and proper use and
enjoyment of the Subject Property, nor shall any improper, unsightly, offensive or unlawful use be
made of any Parcel or any improvements thereon or of the Common Area, nor any part thereof,
and all laws, zoning ordinances, and regulations of all governmental bodies having jurisdiction
shall be observed. The use, enjoyment and occupancy ofthe Subject Property shall be in such a

manner so as not to cause or produce any of the following effects discernible outside buildings
located thereon or affect the adjoining property or any portion or portions thereof: noise or sound
that is objectionable because of its unusual volume, duration, intermittent beat, frequency or
shrillness in the context of businesses operating in a commercial retail center; smoke; noxious,
toxic or corrosive fumes or gases; obnoxious odors; dust, dirt or fly ash; unusual fire or explosive
hazards; or vibration. The normal activities surrounding construction of a commercial structure
and the construction activities within the Center by the Declarant or the other Owners and the
normal operation of a quick service restaurant shall not violate the prohibition contemplated
herein.

12.3 GARBAGE AND TRASH. No trash, garbage or other waste material or refuse
shall be placed or stored on any part ofthe Subject Property except in covered or sealed sanitary
containers. All such sanitary containers must be stored within each building, buried underground,
or placed within an enclosure or concealed by means of a screening wall of material similar to and
compatible with that of the building. These elements shall be integrated with the concept of the
building plan, shall be designed so as not to attract attention, and shall be located in the most
inconspicuous manner possible. Nofwithstanding the foregoing, it shall be deemed acceptable for
the Owner of the Aldi Parcel to place its trash receptacle(s) within its truck well in a manner
consistent with its national prototypical store concept.

12.4 STORAGB RECEPTACLES. Absent the consent of the Declarant, no fuel tanks
or similar storage receptacles may be exposed to view, and same may be installed only within an
approved accessory building, within a screened area, or buried underground, and shall otherwise
comply with standards established from time to time by the Declarant. Each Owner of a Parcel
acknowledges that if a Tractor Supply ultimately is located on a parcel, Declarant intends to
consent to its typical outdoor display of equipment, merchandise and a propane fuel tank.

12.5 VEHICLES AND REPAIR. No inoperative cars, motorcycles, trucks or other
types of vehicles shall be allowed to remain either on or adjacent to any Parcel for a continuous

9

41



period in excess of three (3) days; provided, however this provision shall not apply to any such
vehicle being kept in an enclosure and not visible from the street or any neighboring Parcel.

12.6 TEMPORARY STRUCTURES. No building or structure of a temporary
character, including-trailers, tents and shacks shall be permitted in the Subject Property; provided,
however, temporary improvements used solely in connection with the construction of permanent
improvements shall be permitted so long as located as inconspicuously as possible and removed
immediately upon completion of such construction.

I2.7 COMPLETIONOF'CONSTRUCTION. After commencement of construction
of any improvements in the Subject Properby, the Owner shall diligently prosecute the work
thereon, to the end that the improvements shall be completed no later than eighteen (18) months
after commencement of construction thereof. The Owner of the Parcel on which improvements
are being constructed shall, to the extent reasonably possible, at all times keep public and private
streets contiguous to the Parcel free from any dirt, mud, garbage, trash or other debris which might
be occasioned by construction of the improvements and shall keep the Common Area free from
obstruction for at least one-way vehicular traffic for the purposes of access, ingress and egress to
and from the Center and to and from each Parcel.

12.8 EXCAVATION. No clearing or excavation shall be made except in connection
with the construction, maintenance or repair of an improvement; and upon completion thereof
exposed openings shall be backfilled, and disturbed ground shall be leveled, graded and seeded,
as provided on the approved plans for landscaping.

12.9 STORAGE AND LOADING AREAS. Unless specifically approved in writing
by Declarant no materials, supplies or equipment (except during the construction of improvements)
shall be stored in any area ofany Parcel except inside an approved building, or behind a visual
barrier screening such areas from the view of the adjoining Parcels and any street. Each Owner of
a Parcel acknowledges that if a Tractor Supply ultimately is located on a parcel, Declarant intends
to consent to its typical outdoor display of equipment, merchandise and a propane fuel tank.

12.10 RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED USES. No Parcel in the Center may be used
for any of the activities or businesses listed in Exhibit "C" attached hereto, unless expressly
provided otherwise on Exhibit "C".

ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13.1 CONSTRUCTIVE NOTICE AND ACCEPTANCE. Everyperson, corporation,
partnership, limited partnership, trust, association, or other legal entity, who or which shall
hereafter have, claim, own or acquire any right, title, interest or estate in or to any portion of the
Subject Property, whether or not such interest is reflected upon the Public Records of Levy County,
Florida, shall be conclusively deemed to have consented and agreed to each and every term,
provision, covenant, condition, restriction and reservation contained or by reference incorporated
in this Declaration, whether or not any reference to this Declaration is contained in the document
or instrument pursuant to which such person, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, trust,

l0

42



association or other legal entity shall have acquired such right, title, interest or estate in the Subject
Propefiy or any portion thereof.

13.2 GOVERNING LAW. This Declaration and the interpretation and enforcement of
the same shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.

13.3 CONSTRUCTION. The provisions of this Declaration shall be liberally
construed so as to effectuate and carry out the objects and purposes specified in Article 2 of this
Declaration.

13.4 ATTORNEYST FEES. In the event that legal proceedings are instituted to enforce
any of the provisions set forth in this Declaration, as amended or modified from time to time, or
to enjoin any violation or attempted violation or default or attempted default of the same, the
prevailing party in such proceeding shall be entitled to recover, from the losing party such
reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs as may be awarded by the Court rendering judgment in
such proceedings.

13.5 NO WAIVER. Failure by the Declarant to enforce any term, provision, covenant,
condition, restriction or reservation herein contained in any particular instance or on any particular
occasion shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to do so upon any subsequent violation or
attempted violation or default or attempted default of the same or any other term, provision,
covenant, condition, restriction, easement or reservation contained herein.

13.6 CUMULATIVE RIGHTS AND REMEDIES. In connection with the
enforcement of this Declaration, all rights and remedies of the Declarant and the Owners, to the
extent provided herein, shall be cumulative, and no single right or remedy shall be exclusive of
any other, and Declarant and the Owners, to the extent specifically provided in this Declaration,
shall have the right to pursue anyone or all of such rights or remedies or any other remedy or relief
which may be provided by law, whether or not expressly stated in this Declaration or otherwise.

13.7 EFFECT OF INVALIDATION. If in the course of an attempt to enforce this
Declaration, any particular provision of this Declaration is held to be invalid by any court, the
invalidity of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions hereof.

13.8 NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to the provisions
of this Declaration shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been properly and timely
delivered by either parly to the other if such notice shall have been delivered by overnight express
mail (which shall include Federal Express or United Parcel Seruice or any other nationally
recognized overnight Courier Service) or certified mail, return receipt requested and notices shall
be effective upon receipt (as evidenced by return receipt if sent via mail). Rejection or refusal to
accept will have the effect of receipt. The notices shall be delivered to the interested parties as

follows:

(a) Notice to an Owner shall be delivered to the address of the applicable Owner
as reflected in the tax records of Levy County, Florida.

(b) Notice to the Declarant shall be to its principal place of business which
initially is: 5555 S. Kirkman Road, Ste. 201, Orlando, Florida 32819. Any change of

ll

43



Declarant's address documents as amendment to this Declaration and recorded in the
public records of Levy County, Florida.

13.9 DIIRATION. The terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, restrictions or
reservations set forth in this Declaration shall run with the land and shall continue and be binding
upon the Declarant and the Declarant and upon each Owner from time to time of any Parcel or
portion thereof and the respective successors and assigns and all other persons, parties or legal
entities having or claiming any right, title or interest in the Parcels, by, through or under any of
them, for a period of seventy-five (75) years from the date this Declaration is recorded among the
Public Records of Levy County, Florida, after which time this Declaration and the easements,
covenants, conditions, restrictions or reservations set forth herein, as the same shall have been
changed, amended or modified from time to time, shall be automatically extended for successive
periods of ten (10) years unless an instrument of termination executed by all Owners of Parcels
located within the Subject Property is recorded among the Public Records of Levy County, Florida
prior to the end of the initial term or any subsequent extension term of this Declaration.

13.10 ASSIGNMENT OF DECLARANT'S RIGHTS AND INTERESTS. The rights,
obligations and interests of the Declarant under this Declaration may and shall be transferred and
assigned by the Declarant to any successor or successors to all or part of the Declarant's interest
in the Subject Properly only by an express transfer, conveyance or assignment incorporated into a
recorded deed or other instrument, as the case may be, with written notice thereof delivered to each
Owner, transferring, conveying or assigning such rights, obligations interests to such successor.
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything contained herein to the contrary, in the event Declarant
fails to assign its rights, obligations and interests as provided above, then immediately upon the
Turnover Date, the Owner of the largest Parcel in the Subject Project (other than the Owner of the
Aldi Parcel, unless expressly agreed to by such Owner), shall automatically be deemed to have
assumed such rights, obligations and interests of Declarant under this Declaration. Such
assignment and assumption shall be deemed to automatically occur without any further action
required by any party hereto.

13.11 INDEMNIFICATION. Any party who performs work on another's property shall
promptly restore any portion of the property damaged or disturbed as a result of such work, and
shall indemnify the Owner of the Subject Property on which such work is performed against any
loss, damage, claim, suit, cost and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of the
work performed.

13.12 NO WARRANTIES. This Declaration is made for the purposes set forth in
Article 2 of this Declaration and the Declarant makes no warranties or representations, express or
implied as to the binding effect or enforceability of all or any portion of the terms and provisions
of or the easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations set forth in this
Declaration, or as to the compliance of any of the same with public laws, ordinances and
regulations applicable thereto.

13.13 NO DEFAULT. No default or violation of any of the terms of this Declaration,
shall constitute the basis for cancellation or termination of this Declaration.

t2

44



13.14 FUTURE UTILITY EASEMENTS. Notrvithstanding anything in this
Declaration to the contrary, but subject to the express terms and conditions set forth in Section 6.1

above as it relates to each individual Lot, Declarant shall have the right to enter into any utility
easements for the benefit of the Center. In the event that any such utility easement is entered into
subsequent to the initial conveyance of any Lot (and such grantee's successors and assigns,
including mortgagees and all persons claiming an interest in such Lot by, through or under such
grantee) by its acceptance of such initial instrument of conveyance (whether by metes and bounds
legal description or by platted lot and block legal description) shall be deemed to have consented
and agreed to the inclusion of any such Lot in any such utility easement and such grantee and all
parties claiming by, through or under such grantee shall be deemed to have consented and agreed
to join in and execute such utility easement documents as may be reasonably required to effecfuate
the development of the Center by Declarant. No such utility easement shall: (a) increase the
obligations of the owner of a Lot beyond any obligations of such Owner prior to such initial
conveyance of a Lot; or (b) locate any such utility easement on a Lot in a manner that interferes
with an Owner's development or its Lot, including without limitation any proposed placement of
and construction of the building and related improvements on aLot, nor prohibit in the easement
area such other improvements, by way of example, but not in limitation thereof, such as

landscaping, curbs, asphalt parking areas, irrigation and traffic control devices.

13.15 PLATTING. Notwithstanding anything in this Declaration to the contrary, but
subject to any written lease or occupancy agreement with any occupant, Declarant shall have the
right to plat the Subject Property or any portions thereof then owned by Declarant pursuant to and
in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of
any govemmental authority having jurisdiction over the Subject Property or any improvements
constructed or located therein then owned by Declarant. In the event that any such platting shall
take place subsequent to the initial conveyance of a particular Lot so conveyed, then any such
subsequent platting shall be subject to the approval of the Owner of such Lot (and such Owner's
successors and assigns, including mortgagees and all persons claiming an interest in such Lot by,
through or under such Owner). Such platting shall be done at Declarant's sole cost and expense
and at no additional cost to any subsequent Owner of a Lot. Further, no such platting shall: (a)
increase the obligations of the Owner of a Lot beyond any obligations of such Owner prior to such
platting; or (b) reconfigure the Lot or easements established herein in a manner that would
adversely affect any Owner's use and enjoyment of their Lot.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]

l3

45



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Declarant has caused this Declaration to be made and
executed as of the day and year first above written.

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the presence WILLISTON SHOPPING CENTER
of: PARTNERS, LLC, a Florida limited liabilify

company

Signature
Randall R. Hodge, Vice President

Printed Name

Signature

Printed Name

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) S.S

)COUNTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of n physical presence

or ! online notarization, this _ day of 202l,by Randall R. Hodge, as Vice
President of Williston Shopping Center Partners, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, on
behalf of the company. He [is personally known to me] [has produced
identificationl.

NOTARY PUBLIC
Printed Name:

as

My Commission Expires:

lNorARrAL SEALI

l4

46



JOINDER AND CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE TO

DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS, COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That (the "Mortgagee"), whose address is
being the holder of that certain Mortgage and

Security Agreement dated from Williston Shopping Center Partners,
LLC, a Florida limited liability company, recorded on in Official Records
Book _, Page _, Public Records of Levy County, Florida (the "Mortg&g€"), hereby joins in
and consents to the filing of the Declaration of Easements, Covenants and Restrictions, dated

(the "Declaration")

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]

l5

47



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Joinder and Consent this
day of 2021

Signed, sealed and delivered
in the presence ofi

By:
Signature

Printed Name

Signature

Printed Name

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF
S.S

)
)
)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of n physical presence

or ! online notarization, this day of 202r, by as

of on behalf of the company. He [is
personally known to me] [has produced as identificationl

NOTARY PUBLIC
Printed Name:_
My Commi.rion E*pi*
INOTARTAL SEAL]

Notary Public State of Florida
Printed Name:
My Commission Expires:

l6

48



EXHIBIT 3.A'

Legal Description of Subject Property

t7

49



EXHIBIT "B'

Center Site Plan

SEE ATTACHED [Mark Access Drivesl

l8

50



EXHIBIT ftC''

Restricted or Prohibited Uses

(a) a Retail Grocery Store. The term "Retail Grocery Store" means a supermarket, a meat
market, a grocery store, a fruit and vegetable store or stand, afrozen or otherwise processed
food store, and any other store where more than fifty (50) food items are sold for off-
premises consumption. "Retail Grocery Store" does not include a delicatessen, drug store
or any restaurant wherein prepared food is sold for on-premises or "take-out" consumption.
The restriction set forth in this item (a) shall specifically not apply to the eastemmost Parcel
depicted on Exhibit B;

(b) dry cleaning establishment, provided, the foregoing restriction shall not include an
establishment for dry cleaning drop-off and pick-up only, with no cleaning services being
performed at the subject property;

(c) a pet store (excluding such services ifprovided by a national retailer such as Petco);

(d) a business selling alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption except for a restaurant
with sit down table service as its primary operation in which the sale of alcoholic beverages
does not exceed 50% ofits gross sales;

(e) auto repair shop;

(f) gasoline station (excluding gasoline sales provided in connection with a convenience store
operated by a national retailer such as Tlll\;

(g) adult book store or any establishment selling or exhibiting pornographic materials
(excluding national book retailers such as Barnes & Noble);

(h)

(D

0)

bingo parlor;

a school, academy or learning center having more than twenty students at any one time;

a video game parlor or amusement arcade (excluding such items being deployed as part of
a restaurant operation such as a play room in a Burger King restaurant);

(k)

0)

(m)

(n)

(o)

a business which would emit or produce noxious fumes of gases or loud noises;

an assembly or manufacturing operation;

a distillation, refining, smelting, industrial, agricultural, drilling or mining operation;

a junk yard, stock yard or animal raising operation;

a dump or disposal, or any operation for the incineration or reduction of garbage or refuse;

19

51



(p)

(q)

G)

(s)

(t)

a mortuary or funeral parlor;

flea market;

a nightclub, discotheque or dance hall;

D*9, alcohol and other substance abuse centers.

Fraternal or sororital organizations;

Pawn shops or other establishments specializing in the resale of second-hand items;

Political and/or social organizations, clubs and associations;

Self-service laundry;

Self-service storage;

a lot for the sale of used motor vehicles;

a pool or billiard hall (unless operated as part of a large scale family recreation or
entertainment facility) ;

(u) a use or operation which is generally considered to be an unreasonable environmental risk
to any portion of the Property or surrounding properties excluding facilities selling
petroleum products provided such facilities comply with any and all environmental laws,
statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations and are otherwise permitted hereunder;

(v) off-trackbettingestablishment;

(w) a mobile home park, trailer court, labor camp, or mobile home sales lot (except that this
provision shall not prohibit the temporary use of construction trailers during any periods
of construction, reconstruction or maintenance);

(x) an abortion clinic;

(v) an operation whose principal use is a massage parlor and/or exotic dancing, provided this
shall not prohibit massages in connection with a beauty salon, spa, or health club/athletic
facility;

(z)

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

20

52



OWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANGE
{with Florida Modifications}

PoricyNumber OXFL-087 521 19 Fite Number : r-210J1
lssued by 0ld Republic National Title lnsurance Company

Any notice ol claim and any other notice or statement in writing required to be given to the
Gompany under this Policy nust be given to the Company at the address shown in Section 18

ofthe Conditions.

COVERED RISKS
SUBJECT TO THE EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE, THE EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE CONIAINED IN

SCHEDULE B, AND THE CONDlTl0NS, OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAI TITLE INSURANCI C0MPANY, a Florida corporation {the "Company") insures, as of
Date of Policy, against loss or damage, not exceeding the Amount of lnsurance, sustained or incurred by the lnsured by reason of:

1. Title being vested other than as stated in Schedule A.

2. Anydefect in or lien or encumbrance 0n the Title. This Covered Hisk includes but is not limited to insurance against loss from
(a) A defect in the Title caused by

li) forgery, {raud, undue influence. duress, incompetency. incapacity. or impersonation;

{ii) failure of any person or Entity to have authorized a transfer 0r conveyance;

{iii} a document affecting Title not properly created, executed, witnessed, sealed, acknowledged, notarized, or delivered;
(iv) failure t0 perform those acts necessary t0 create a document by electronic means authorized by law;

{v} a document executed under a falsified, expired, 0r otherwise invalid power of attorney;

{vi} a document not properly filed, recorded, or indexed in the Public Becords including failure to perfom those acts by electronic

means authorized by law; or

{vii) a defective judicial or administrative proceeding.

(bl The lien 0f real estate taxes 0r assessments imposed 0n the Title by a governmental authority due or payable, but unpaid.
(c) Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, 0r adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate

andcompletelandsurveyoftheLand. Theterm"encroachment"includesencroachmentsof existingimprovementslocatedontheLand
onto adjoining land, and encroachments ontothe land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

3. Unmarketable Title.

4. No right 0f access to and from the Land.

5. The violation or enforcement of any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting,
regulating, prohibiting. or relating to

{a) the occupancy, use, 0r enjoyment 0f the Land;

(b) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land;

{c} the subdivision of land, or

{d} snvironmental protection

if a notice, describing any part 0f the Land, is recorded in the Public Records setting forth the violation 0r intention to enforce, but only to

the extent of the violation 0r enforcement referred to in that notice.

ln Witness Whereof,OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITIE INSURANCE C0IUPANY, has caused this policy to be signed and sealed as of Date of Policy

shown in Schedule A, the policy to become valid when countersigned by an authorized signatory ofthe Company.

Pollcv l8suor:
Countersionld: LEWAESTRACT & TITLE COMPANY- 50 PlcNlc STREET otD REpUBuc NATtofrtALT[LE TNSURANCE CoMpANy

POST OFFTCE BOX 148
bnol$Oi'r, FL 32621"0000 A Stock Conpany
PHONE: (352) 486-2tt6 400 Seclnd Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55401

(61 2) s71-1 t t t

M President

Authorized 0fficer or Licensed Agent

is{i

By

oRT Form 4309 Fl
AI.IA Owflers Policy 0f Titlo lnsuranco 0"17-06 {with Florida Moriifrcalions} Attest b-*V drll Secretary

53



6. An enforcement action based on the exercise of a governmental police power nol covered by Covered Hisk 5 if a notice ofthe enforcemenl

action, describing any part of the Land, is recorded in the Public Records, but only t0 ths extent of the enforcement referred to in that notice.

7. The exercise of the rights of eminent domain il a notice ol the exercise, describing any pan of the Land, is recorded in the Public Records.

B. Any taking by a governmental body that has occuned and is binding on the rights of a purchaser for value without Knowledge.

9. Title being vested other than as stated in Schedule A or being defective

ta) as a result of the avoidance in whole or in part, or from a court order providing an alternative remedy, of a transfer oi all or any part of

the tills t0 or any interest in the Land occuring prior l0 the transaction vesting Title as shown in Schedule A because that prior transfer

constituled a fraudulent or preferential transfer under federal bankruptcy, stale insolvency, or similar creditors' rights laws; or

{b} because the instrument of transfer vesting Title as shown in Schedule A constilutes a preferential transfer under federal Dankruplcy,

stale insolvency, or similar credltors' righls laws by reason of the failure of its recording in the Public Records
(iito be timely. or

{ii} to impan notice 0f i1s existence to a purchaser {or value 0r t0 a judgmenl or lien creditor.

10. Any defect in or lien or encumbrance on the Title 0r othei matter included in Covered Bisks 1 through g that has been created or attached or has

been filed or recorded in the Public fiecords subsequent lo Date of Policy and prior to the recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the

Public Records that vesls Title as shown in Schedule A.

The Company will also pay the costs. attorneys'fees, and expenses incurred in defense 0f any matter insured against by this Policy, but only to the

extent provided in the Conditions.

EXCTUSIONS FROM GOVERAGE

The following malters are expressly excluded from the coverage of

lhis policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs,

attorneys'fees, or expenses that arise by reason of:

{a}Any law. ordinance, permit, 0r governmental regulation

{including those relating to building and zoning} restricting,

regulating, prohibiting, or relating to

{i} the occupancy, use, 0r enjoynrent ol the Land

tii) the character, dimensions, or location of any

improvemenl erected on the Land;

(iii) the subdivision of land; or

iiv) environmenlal protection;

0r the eFfect of any violaiion of these laws,

ordinances, 0r governmsntal regulaiions. This

Exclusion 1{a} does not nodify or limit the

coverage provided under Covered Risk 5.

ib) Any governmental police power, This Fxclusion 1{b} does

not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6.

2. Rights of eminent domain. This [xclusion does not modify or limit
the coverage provided under Coveted Risk 7 or 8.

3. Defects, iiens, encumbrances, adverse claims, 0r other malters

{a} created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the lnsured

Claimant;

oRT Fom 4309 FL
ALTA Olvrers Policy ol Title lnsuronce 0-i7'06 {with Fl0rida lr0diiirationsl

(bl not Known to tha Company, not recorded in the Public

Records at Date of Pclicy, but Known to the lnsured Claimant

and not disclosed in writing to the Company by the lnsured

Claimant prior to the date the lnsured Claimant became an

lnsured under this policy;

{c} resulting in no loss or damage to the lnsured Clainant;
(d) attaching 0r created subsequent t0 Oate of Policy; or

{e} resulting in loss sr danage that would not have been

sustained if the lnsured Claimant had pald value for the Title.

4. Any claim, by reason 0f the opsrati0n of federal bankruptcy, stale

insolvency, or sirnilar creditors' rights laws, that the transaction

vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A, is

{a} a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfet; or

{b} a preierential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered

Risk 9 of this policy.

5. Any lien 0n the Title for real estate laxes 0r assessments imposed

by governmental authorily and created or atlachrng belween Date

of Policy and the date of recording of the deod 0r othsr instrument

of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as shown in

Schedule A.

Page 2

54



CONDITIONS
1. OEflNITION OF TERMS
The following terms when used in lhis policy mean:

{a} "Amount of lnsurance": The amount stated in Schedule A, as may

be increased or decreased by endorsement to this policy, increased

by Section 8{b}, or decreased by Sections 1 0 and 1 1 ol these Conditions.

ib) "Date of Policy"; The date designated as "Date of Policy" in

Schedule A.

{c} "Entity": A corporation, partnership, trust, limited liability
company, or other similar legal entity.

idl "lnsured": The lnsured named in Schedule A.

{i} The lerm "lnsured'' also includes

{A} successors t0 the Titls of the lnsured by operation of law as

distinguished from purchase. including heirs, devisees, survivors,

personal representatives, or next of kin,

(B) successors to an lnsured by dissolution, mergel consolidation,

distribution, or reorganization;

tC) successors lo an lnsured by ils conversion to another kind of

Entity;

{D} a grantee of an lnsured under a deed delivered without
payment of actual valuable consideration conveying th0 Title

i1 l if the stock, shares, memberships, or othet equity
interests of lhe grantee are wholly-owned by lhe
named lnsured,

{2} if the grantee wholly owns the named lnsured,

{3} lf the grantee is wholly-owned by an affiliated
Entily 0f the named lnsured, provided the affiliated
Fntity and the named lnsured are both wholly-owned

by the same person or Entity. or

{4} if the grantee is a trustee or beneficiary of a trust
created by a written instrumenl established by tlte
lnsured named in Schedule A for estate planning

purp0ses.

{ii}Witn regard to (A), {B}, {C}, and {D} reserving, however, all rights

and defenses as t0 any successor that the Company would have had

against any predecessor lnsured.
(e) "lnsured Claimant": An lnsuied claiming loss or damage.

{fl "Knowledge' or ''Known'; Actual knowledgs, not constructive

knowledge or notice that may be imputed to an lnsured by teason of

the Public Records or any other records that impart constructive

notice of matters affecting the Title.

{g} 'Land': The land described in Schedule A, and affixed improvements

that by law constitute real property. The term "Land" does not

include any property beyond the lines of the erea described in

Schedule A, nor any right, iitle, interest, estate, 0r easement in

abutling streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways, 0r wateMays,
but this does not modify or limit the sxlent that a right of access t0

and from the Land is insured by this policy.

{hl "Mortgage": Mortgage, deed of trust, trust deed, 0r other security

instrurnent, including one evidenced by electronic means authorized

by law.

{i} "Public Records": Records established under state statutes at
Date of Policy for the purpose of imparting constructive notice of
matters relating t0 real property to purchasers lor value and without
Knowledge. With respect to Covered Risk 5{d}, "Public Records"

shall also include environmental protection liens filed in the records

of the clerk 0f the United States Dislrict Court for the district where
the Land is located.

{j} "Title": The estate or interest described in Schedule A.

{k! ''Unmarkatable Title": Title affected by an alleged 0r apparent
matter that would permit a prospective purchaser or lessee of the
Tille or lender 0n the Title to be releasad from the obligation to

oRTFo.m 1309 tL
AITA Owners P0licy 0f Title lnsursnce 6-17-06 (with tlorida N/odificati0nsl

purchase, lease, or lend if there is a contractual condition requiring
the delivery of marketable title.

2. CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE
The coverage of this policy shall continue in {orce as of Date of
Policy in favor of an lnsured, but only so long as the lnsured retains
an estate or interest in the Land, or holds an obligation secured by

a purchase money Mortgage given by a purchaser lrom the lnsured,
or only so long as the lnsured shall have liability byreason of
warranties in anytransler 0r conveyance 0f the Title. This policy

shall not continue in fcrce in iavor of any purchassr trorn the
lnsured of either fi) an estate or interest in the Land, or {ii} an

obligation secured by a purchase money lVortgage given to the
lnsured.

3. NOTICE OF CTAIM TO BE GIVEN BV INSUBED CLAIMANT
The lnsured shall notilythe Company promptly in writing {i} in case
of any litigation as set forth in Seclion 5{a) oi these Conditions, {iii
in case Knowledge shall come to an lnsured hereunder o{ any clainr
oftille or intersst that rs adverse t0 the Titie. as insLrred, and that
might cause loss or damage for which the Cornpany may be liable
byvirtue ofthis policy, or{iii} ifthe Title, as insured, is rejected as

Unmarkeiable Title. lf the Company is prejudiced by the failure of
the lnsured Clairnant to provide prompt notice, the Company's

liability to the lnsured Claimant under the policy shall be reduced
to the extent of the prejudice.

4. PR00F0Fross
ln lhe event the Conrpany is unable to deterrnine the amount of
loss or damage, the Company may. al its option, require as a condition

of payment that tha lnsured Clairnant furnish a signed proof of loss.
The proof of loss musl describe the defect, lien, encumbrance, or
other mattsr insured against by this policy that conslitutes the
basis of loss or damage and shall slale, t0 the extenl possible, the
basis of calculating the amount of the loss or damage.

5. DEFENSEAND PROSECUTION OT ACIIONS
{a} Upon written request by the lnsured, and subject to the options
c0ntained in Section 7 of these Conditions, the Company, at its
own cosl and without unreasonable delay, shall provide for the
delense of an lnsured in litigation in which any third party asserts
a claim covered by this policy adverse to the lnsured. This obligation
is limited to only those stated causes of action alleging matters
insured against by this policy. The Company shall have the right t0
select counsel of its choice {subject to the right of the lnsured to
cbject for reasonable causel 1o represent the lnsured as t0 those
slateci causes of action. lt shall not be liable for and will not pay

the lees of any other counsel. Tha Company will not pay any fees,
cosls, 0r expenses incurred by the lnsured in the defense of those
causes of action that allege matters not insured against by this policy.

{b) The Company shall have the right, in addition to the options
contained in Section 7 of these Conditions, at its own cost, t0
institute and prosecute any action or proceeding or to do any

oihsr act that in its opinion may be necessary or desirable to
establish the Title, as insured, 0r t0 prevent or reduce loss or
damage to the lnsured. The Company may take any appropriats
action underthe terms 0fthis policy, whether or no1 it shall be

liable to the lnsured- The exercise of these rights shall not be an

admission of liability or waiver of any provision of this policy.
lf the Company exercises its rights under this subsection, it musi
do so diligently.
(c) Whenever the Company brings an action or asserts a defense
as required or permittad by this policy, the Company may pursug

the litigation to a final determinalion by a court 0f c0mpetent
jurisdiction, and it expressly reseryes the right, in its sole
discretion, lo appeal any adverse judgment 0r order.

Page 3

55



G0NDITI0NS {con't}

6. DUTY OF INSURED CTAIMANT IO COOPERATE

{a} ln ail cases where this policy permits or requires the Company
t0 prosecute or provide for the defense o{ any action or proceeding

and any appeals, the lnsured shall secure to the Company the right
to s0 prosecute or provide defense in the action or proceeding,

including the righl t0 use, at its option, the name ofthe lnsured {or
this purpose. Whenever requested by the Company, the lnsured,
at the Conpany's expense, shall give the Cornpany all reasonable

aid {i} in securing evidence, obtaining witresses, prosecuting or
defer"rding the action or proceeding, or effecting settlement, and

{ii} in any other lawful act lhat in the opinion of the Company may
be necessary or desirable to establish the Title 0r any other matter
as insured. lf the Company is prejudiced by the failure of the
lnsured to furnish the required cooperation, the Company's obligations
to the lnsured under the policy shall terminate, including any

liability or obligation to defend, prosecute, 0r continus any litigation,
with regard t0 the matter 0t matters requiring such c00peration.

{b} The Company may reasonably require the lnsured Claimant to
submit to examination under 0ath by any authorized repiesentative
of the Company and to produce for axamination, inspection, and
copying, at such reasonable times and places as may be designated

by the authorized representative of the Company, all records, in
whatever medium maintained, including books, ledgers, checks,

mernoranda, correspondence, reports, e-mails, disks, lapes, and

videos whether bealing a date before or aftel Date of Policy, that
reasonably pertain t0 the loss or damage. Further. if requested by

any authorized representative of the Company, the lnsured Claimant
shall grant ils permission, in writing, for any authorized representative

of the Company to examine, inspect, and copy all of these records
in the custody 0r control of a third party that reasonably pefiain t0
lhe loss or damage, All in{ornration designated as confidential by
the lnsured Claimant provided to the Company pursuant to this
Section shall not be disclosed t0 othsrs unless, in the reasonable
judgment of the Company, it is necessary in the administration of
lhe clairn. Failure of the lnsured Claimant t0 submit for sxamination
under oath, produce any reasonably requested infonnation, or
grant permission t0 secure reasonably necessary information from

third parties as required in this subsection, unless prohibited by

law or governmental regulation, shall terminate any liability of the
Company under this policy as to that claim.

7. OPTIONS TO PAY OR OTHERWISE SETTTE CIAIMS;
TERMINATION OF TIABILITY

ln case of a claim under this policy, the Company shall have the
following additional options:

{a} To Pay or Tender Payrnent of the Amount of lnsurance.

To pay or tender payment of the Amount of lnsurance under this
policy together with any costs, attorneys'fees, and expenses
incurred by the lnsured Claimant that were authorized by the
Company up t0 the time of payment 0r tender of payment and that
the Company is obligated to pay.

Upon the exercise by the Conrpany of this option, all liability and
obligations of the Company to the lnsured under this policy, other
than to make the payment required in this subsection, shall terminate,
including any liability or obligation to defend, prosecute. or contin-
ue any litigation.

{b} To Pay or 0therwise Settle With Parties 0ther than the lnsured
or With the lnsured Claimant.

{i}to pay or oiherwise settle with other parties for or in the
name of an lnsured Claimant any claim insured againsl under this

oRTForm 43fl9FL
l\lTA 0wners fulicy ot litl€ lnsurancc 6-1 7-00 {wi(h Florida M0dificationsl

policy. ln addition, the Company will pay any costs, attorreys'fees,
and expenses incurred by the lnsured Claimant that were authorized
by the Company up t0 ths tinre of payment and that the Cornpany is

obligated to pay; or

{ii} to pay or otherwise settle with the lnsured Claimant the loss or
damage provided for under this policy, together with any costs,

attorneys'fees, and expenses incuned by the lnsured Claimant that
were authoiized by the Company up t0 the time of payment and that
the Company is obligated to pay.

Upon the exercise by the Company of either of the options provided

for in subsections (blti) or {ii}, the Company's obligations to the
lnsured under this policy for the claimed loss or damage, other than
the payments required to be made, shall terrninate, including any

liability or obligation to defend, prosecute, or continue any

litigation,

8. DETERMINATION AND EXTENT OF LIABITIW
Ihls policy is a contract oi indemnity againsl actual monetary loss 0r

damage sustained or incuned by the lnsured Claimant who has suffered
loss or damage by reason 0f matters insured against by this policy.

{a} The extent of liability of the Company for loss or damage under
this policy shall not exceed the lesser of

{i} lhe Aniount of lnsurance; or

{ii} the difference between the value 0f the Title as insured and the
value ofthe Title subject to the risk insured against by this policy.

{b} lf the Company pursues ils rights under Section b of these
Conditions and is unsuccessful in establishing the Title, as insured,

{i} the Amount of lnsurance shall be increased by t0%, and

{ii} the lnsured Claimant shall have the right to have the loss or
damage determined either as of the date the claim was made by
the insured Claimant or as of the date lt is settled and paid.

{cl ln addition to the exrent of liabiliry under {a} and {b}, rhe company
will also pay those costs, attorneys' fees. and expenses incurred in

accordance with Sections 5 and 7 0f these Conditlons.

S. LIMITATION OF LIABITIW

{a} lf the Company establishes the Title, or rernoves the alleged
defect, lien, or encumbrance. 0r cures the lack of a right of access

to or from the Land, or cures the claim of Unmarketable Title, all as

insured, in a reasonably diligent rnanner by any method, including
litigation and the comoletion ol any appeals, it shall have fully
performed its obligations with respect io that matter and shall not
be liable for any loss or damage caused to the lnsured.
(b) ln the event 0f any litigation, including liligation try rhe Cornpany

or with the Company's consent, the Company shall have no liabilily
for loss or damage until there has been a final determination by a

coun 0f c0mpetent jurisdiction, and disposltion of all appeals,

adverse to the Title. as insured.
(c| The Company shall not be liable for loss or damage ro the
lnsured for liability voluntarily assumed by the lnsured in settling
any claim 0r suit without the prior wrilten consent of the Company.

10. REDUCTI0N 0F INSURANCE; fiE0UCTION 0R TERMINATI0N
OF LIABITITY

All payments under this policy, except paymsnts made for costs,

altorneys'fees, and expenses, shall reduce the Amounl of lnsurance
by the amount of the payment.

!'age 4

56



CONDITI0NS (con'tl

1 I. IIABITITY NONCUMULATIVE
The Amount of lnsurance shall be reduced by any amount the Company
pays under any policy insuring a Mortgage to which exception is taken
in Schedule I orto which the lnsured has agreed, assumed,0rtaken
subject. or which is execuled by an lnsured afier Date of Policy and

which is a charge or lien on the Title, and the amount so paid shall be

deemed a payment to the lnsured under this policy.

1 2. PAYMENT OT IOSS
When liability and the extent of loss or damage have been definitely
fixed in accordance with these Conditions, the payment shall be made

within 30 days.

1 3. RIGHTS OT RECOVERY UPON PAYMENT OR STTTTEMENT

ia) Whenever the Company shall have settled and paid a claim
under this policy, it shatl be subrogated and entitled to the rights of

the lnsured Claimant in the Title and all other rights and remedies
in respect to the claim that the lnsured Claimant has against any

person 0r pr0perty, t0 the extent of the amounl 0f any lOss, c0sts,
attorneys'fees, and expenses paid by the Company. lf requested
by the Company, the lnsured Claimant shall exscute documents to
evidence the transfer to tlre Company of these rights and remedies.
The lnsured Claimant shall permit the Company to sue, compromise,

0r settle in the name of the lnsured Claimant and to use the name

of the lnsured Clajmant in any transaction or litigation involving

lhese rights and remedies.

lf a paymenl 0n account of a claim does not fully cover the loss of
the lnsured Claimant, fie Company shall defer the exercise of its

right to recover until after the lnsured Claimant shall have recovered

its loss.

{b} The Company's right of subrogation includes the rights of the

lnsured to indemnities, guaranties, other policies of insurance, or

bonds, nOtwithstanding any terms or conditi0ns c0ntained in lhose
instruments that address subrogation rights^

14. ARBITRATION
Unless prohibited by applicable law, arbitration pursuant tothe Title
lnsurance Arbitration Rules 0f the American Arbitration Association
may be demanded if agreed to by both the Company and the lnsured at
the time of a controversy or claim. fubitrable matters may include. but
are not lirnited t0, any c0ntr0versy or claim between the Company and
the lnsured arising out of or relating to this policy, and sorvice ol the
[)ompany in connection with its issuance 0r the breach of a policy
provision or other obligation. Arbitralion pursuant to this policy and

under the Rules in effect on the date the demand for arbitration is
made or, at the option of the lnsuled, the Rules in effect at Date 0f

Policy shall ba binding upon the partias. The award may include

altorneys' fees only if the laws 0f the state in which the Land is

located permit a cOurt t0 award attorneys' fees to a prevalling party.

Judgment upon the award rendered by the Arbitrato(s) may be

entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.
The law of the situs of the land shall apply to an arbitration under the
Title lnsurance Arbitration Rules,

A copy oi the Hules may be obtained from the Company upon request.

oRT Fom 4309 FL

15. tlABltlTY LIMITED T0 THIS P0tlCY; POtlCY ENTIRE
CONTRACT

{a} This policy together wlth ail endorsements, if any, atrached t0 it
by the Company is the entire policy and contract between the

lnsured and the Company. ln interpreting any provision of ttris
policy, this policy shall be construed as a whole.

{b} Any claim ol loss or damage that arisss out 0f the status 01 the
Title or by any actron asserting such claim whether or not based on

negligence shall be restricled to this policy.
(c) Any amendment oi or endorsement t0 this pollcy must be in

writing and authenticated by an authorized person, 0r expressly

incorporated by Schedule A of this policy.

{d} Each endorsement to lhis policy issued a1 any time is nade a

pan 0f this policy and is subject to all of its terms and provisions.

Except as the endorsemenl expressly states. it does not {i) modifu

any of the terms and provisions of the policy, iiil modify any prior

endorssment, {iii} extend the Date of Policy, or {iv} increase the

Amounl of lnsurance.

16. SEVERABITITY

ln the eyent any provision of this policy, in whole or in part, is held

invalid or unenforceable under applicable law, the policy shall be

deemed nol to include that provision 0r such part held to be invalid, but

all other provisions shall remain in full force and e{fect,

17. CH0ICE 0F IAW; F0RUM

{a} Choice of Law: The lnsurad acknowledges the Company has

underwritten the risks covered by this policy and detarnrined the
premium charged therefor in reliance upon the law affecting irterests

in real properly and applicable to the intBrprBtation, rights, remedies,

0r entorcement 0f policies of title insurance of the jurisdiction

where the Land is located.

Therefore, the court 0r an arbitrator shall apply the law ol the
jurisdiction where lhe Land is located to determine the validity of
claims against the Title that are adverse to the lnsured and to
interpret and en{orce the terms of this policy. ln neithercase shall
the court or arbitrator apply its conflicts of law principles t0 deter-
mine lhe applicable law.

{b} Choice of Forum; Any litigation or other proceeding brought by

the lnsured against the Company must bs filed only in a state or

federal court within the United States sf America 0r its territ0ries
having appropriate jurisdiction.

18. NOTICES, WHERE SENT

Any nolice ol claim and any 0ther n0tice 0r statemsnt in writing
required to be given to the Company under this policy must be given to
the Company at 400 Second Avenue South, Minneapolis,
Minnesola 55401-2499, Phone: 612-371-1 1 1 1.

ALTA Owners Policy ot Tide iDsiJrance 0.1 7-0E {with Florida Modifications}

Pagc 5

57



Schedule A
Owner's Policy

lssued by Old Republic National Title lnsurance Company

400 Second Avenue Soufrr

Minneapolis, MN 55401 -2499

(612) 371-1 1 11

File No.: T-27431 Policy No.: OXFL.087521tg

Address Reference: 130 SW 3rd Street, Williston, Florida 32696

Amount of lnsurance: $1,250,000.00 Premium: $5,700.00

Date of Policy: March 14, 2019 at 02:42 PM

1. Name of lnsured: WILLISTON SHOPPING CENTER PARTNERS, LLC, a Florida limited liability company

2. The estate or interest in the Land that is insured by this policy is: Fee Simpte

3. Title is vested in: WLLISTON SHOPPING CENTER PARTNERS, LLG, a Florida limited llability company

LEVY ABSTRACT & TITLE COMPANY
OLD REPUBLIC NATIONALTITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
A Stock Compny
4ff SecondAyenue Sofih, Miunryolis, Minnesota 55401

(612) 371-1111

M
Rennelh B. Karaiek - Authorized Ofticer or Agent

Prasdenl

{R
*
*
*

By

ORT Form 4309 FLA
Schedule A for ALTA Owners Policy of Title lnsurance 6-17-06

Af,het A^^,-V d Secolry

58



4. The Land referred to in this policy is described as follows:

Commence at the Northwest corner of Block 31, of the Map of Willlston as per plat thereof recorded in Plat
Book 1, Page I of the Public Records of Levy County, Florlda; thence S 79'14'05" W, along the westerly
extension of the southerly right-of-way line of West Noble Avenue, also known as U.S. Highway 27 Alternate
and State Road 500, a distance of 42.00 feet to the westerly right.of-way line of Southwest Third Street,
formerly Levy Street as per said plat of Map of Williston belng the Point of Beginning; thence continue S
79"14'05" W along the southerly rlght-of-way line of U.S. Highway 27 Alternate, a distance of 1196.64 feet to a
point on the northerly boundary of Lot 5, Block I of Weona Hills Estates as per plat thereof recorded in Plat
Book 2, Page E of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida; thence S 10'50'44'E, a distance of 139.00 feet;
thence S 80o33'35" W, a dlstance of 104.59 feet to the easterly right of-way line of Southwest Sixth Street,
formerly known as Wllliams Street on the said plat of Weona Hills Estates; thence S 00"22'36' E, along said
easterly right-of-way line a distance of 159.53 feet to the northwesterly corner of Lot 15, Block 1 of said Weona
Hills Estates; thence N 79o23'51" E, a distance of 50.00 feet to the northeasterly corner of said Lot 15; thence S
00'22'36" E along the easterly line of said Lot 15, a distance of 103.00 feet to the southeasterly corner of said
Lot {5 and the northerly right-of-way llne of Southwest First Avenue, formerly Church Avenue as per plat of
said Weona Hills Estates; thence N 79o23'51" E, along the northerly right-of-way line of said Southwest Flrst
Avenue, a distance of 957.10 feet; thence N 7E"53'58" E, continuing along said northerly right-of-way line, a
distance of 341.92 feet to the westerly right-of-way line of aforesaid Southwest Third Street; thence N
10'5{'39' W, along sald westerly right-of-way line, a distance of 395.68 feet to the Point of Beginning, All lying
and being located ln Section 6, Township 13 South, Range 19 East, Gity of Williston, Levy County, Florida.

ORT Form 4909 FLA
Schedule A for ALTA Owners Policy of Title lnsurance 6-17-06

59



1

2.

Schedule B
OWNER'S POLICY

File No.: T-27031 Policy No.: OXFL-087521 19

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

This policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees, or expenses that
arise by reason of:

Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any created, first appearing in the
Public Records or aftaching subsequent to the Effective Date but prior to the date the proposed
lnsured acguires for value of record the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this
Commitment,

Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that
would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land. The term "encroachment:
includes encroachments of existing improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land, and
encroachments on the Land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

3. Rights or claims of parties in possession.

4. Construction, Mechanic's, Contractors' or Materialmen's lien claims, if any, where no notice thereof
appears of record.

5. Easernents or claims of easements not shown by the public records.

General or specialtaxes and assessments required to be paid in the year 2019 and subsequent years

NOTE: ltems 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 listed above are hereby deleted

o.

7 RESErvation to the STATE OF FLORIDA contained in Deed from TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT
FUND to WARDELL R. FUGATE, dated 10109/1944, filed 1012711944 and recorded in Deed Book 4'1, Page 344,
Public Records of Levy County, Florida, to wil:

"AS TO ALL LANDS there is reserved unto the State of Florida the title to an undivided one half of all petroleum and
petroleum producls, and title to an undivided three fourths of all other minerals which may be found on or under the
said land, together with the privilege, outside any municipality, this date, to explore for and to mine and develop same.
Said privilege to explore, mine and develop is to be conducted on and under lands inside any municipatity, this date,
only with the consent of the surface owner."(NOTE: The right of entry and exploration has been released by lhe
provisions of Florida Statute 270.11(2,.)

RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT fToM SCHOOL BOARD OF LEVY COUNry, FLORIDA, Io STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION dated 08106/1991, filed 0812811991and recorded in O.R. Book 438, Page
729 (#233599), Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

PERPETUAL EASEMENT from SCHOOL BOARD OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, to STATE oF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION dated 01/05/1999, filed AZnAn999 and recorded in O.R. Book 666, Page
882 (#334703), Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

The survey of Harold Lee Mills, L.S. f2978, daled 0112112016, shows a 3.4 foot wide wood slainaray, a 8.0 foot by 8.0
foot deck, and a 2.0 foot by 2.0 foot A/C unit on concrele pad encroaching onto Schedule A land, located in the NW
corner,

8.

9.

10.

ORT Form 4309 FLA
Schedule A for ALTA Owners Policy of Title lnsurance 6-17-06

60



Date: May 412021

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: RESOLUTION 2021-20

REQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES PREPARED BY: LAURA JONES

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RELEASE
AND SATISFACTION OF LIEN RECORDED IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK
1562, BEGINNING AT PAGE 40, OF TIIE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEvy COUNTY,
FLORIDA, RELATING TO A CODE ENFORCEMENT LIEN.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

61



FLK/aj
04/28/2r

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2O2L.O2O

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORTDA, AUTHORIZTNG THE EXECUTION OF A
RELEASE AND SATISFACTION OF LIEN RECORDED IN THE
oFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK L5,62, BEGINNING AT PAGE 40, OF
THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LE\rr COUNTY, FLORIDA, RELATING
TO A CODE ENFORCEMENT LIEN.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston, Florida (hereinafter the "City") is the

holder of a City Code Enforcement Lien (hereinafter the "City Lien") against

property owned, controlled, or possessed by Suzanne Barrett and Christine

Robinson, (hereinafter the "Property Owners") at the time of the entry of the Order

Impostng Admini.stratiue Fine/ Lienthat has been recorded in the Officiai Records

Book 1562, beginning at Page 4O, of the public records of Levy County, Florida;

and

WHEREAS, the City desires to release, terminate and cancel the City Lien

by recording a Release and Satisfaction of Lien, a copy of which is attached hereto

and made a part of this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

OITY OF TVILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby

incorporated herein and made a part of this resolution.

62



FLK/aj
04/28/2r

Section 2. The City hereby authorizes the President to execute the

Release and Satisfaction of Lien and directs that said instrument be recorded in

the public records of Levy County, Florida.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately

upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this _ day

of May 2O2L.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Debra Jones,
President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

By By:
Latricia Wright,
City Clerk

Frederick L. Koberlein, Jr.,
City Attorney

63



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND CODE ENFORCEMENT
oF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

City of Williston, Florida,
Petitioner,

Case No.: CV 20-08

VS

Barrett, Suzanne/ Robinson, Christine
21931 SE 68th Lane
Morriston, FL 32668

Respondents.

RELEASE AND SATISFACTION OF LIEN

COMES NOW, the Petitioner-Lienor, CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA (herein
"City"), which filed and recorded a lien on November 23,2O2O, through its
Order Imposing Admini.stratiue Fine/ Lien, a copy of such being attached hereto
as "Exhibit A" and incorporated herein, at Official Records Book 1562, Page40,
Official Records of Levy County, Florida, on the property owned by Respondent,
Suzanne Barrett and Christine Robinson.

Upon consideration of the premises of this matter the City Council of the
City of Williston, at a duly noticed meeting on 4th day of May 2021 did deliberate
and vote to release all liens on the Property created by the aforementioned lien.

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Williston hereby releases all liens and right
of lien or claim of whatsoever kind or character on the Property by the City
ofWilliston, Florida through the date hereof, including, but not limited to,
that aforementioned lien recorded in the Public Records of Levy County, Florida
as first stated herein.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionallg. Signatures

appear on the next page.l

64



Signed this _ day of May 2O2I.

ATTEST:

CITY OF WTLLTSTON, FLORIDA

BY:
Debra Jones,
President

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

BY
Frederick L. Koberlein Jr.,
City Attorney

Latricia Wright,
City Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LE\TY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of
physical presence or _online notarization, this day of

2021 by Debra Jones, President, and Latricia Wright, City
Clerk, on behalf of the City of Williston, Florida, who are personally known to me
or produced as identification

Notary Public - Signature

Notary Name - Printed

65



INSTR# 675970, OR BK: 1562 PG: {0, Rccordcd 121151202n 9:29 AM
Rcr: Sttl.Sll Danny J. Shipp,Clerk of thc Circuit Court Lery FL lhputl'Clcrk MBASSI

BOARD OF ANruSTMENTS AI.iID CODE ENFORCEMENT
oF TrrE crrr or wlLilsroN, FI0RIDA

r CITY OF WILUSTON, FIORIDA

vs. Case No. CVzo-o8

Barrett, Suzanne/ Robinson, Christine
zrggr SE 68th lane
Morriston, FL3z668

Respondent

ORDER IMPOSING ADMIMSTRAITVE FINE/LIEN

This CAUSE came on for public hearing before the Board on Norrember B, zo2o,
pursuant to Chapter 46 of the City of Williston Code of Ordinances. After due notice to the
Respondent, and the Boad having heard tegtimony under oath, received evidencg and
heard argument of tbe code enforcement officer or land development regrrlations
adminishatu thercupon issues its Flndings of Fact and Conclusion of law and-order as
follows:

I. FINDINGS OF FACT
The Board makes the following findings of fact;

r. That the Respondent(s), Barrett, Suzanne/ Robinson, Christine, is the owner(s) of real
properly located at B3o SE 6tl' Street which is within the corporate municipal
boundaries of the Cityof Williston, Florida

e. That sufficient evidence was presented by the code enforcement office to demonstrate
tfal prgnertf onstitutes a hazardous land as defined in Section 48-4 Crty of \4rilliston
Codeof Ordinanes.

3. That sufficient evidene was presented b the code enfortement office to demonstrate
that there o<ists upon this property eroessirrc vegetation.

4. That the Respondent did not attend the meetirrg to present any defense.

II. CONCLU$ONSOFII\I/V
Based upon the testimony heard and the evidence presentd" the Code Enforcement Board
concludesr

L That the property located at 33o SE 6rh Street is hazardous because of the excessive
vegetation.

Bas{ upon ^he above conclusions, the Code Euforcement Officer or Iand Development
Regulations Administrator may pmceed accordingly with enforcement under Chapter 46,
Artide VII ofthe City of Williston Code of Ordinances.

66



BK: 1562 PGr {1

r. The violation(s) of the City of Williston Code Sestion 48-5, Unsafe Buildings and
Hazardous land on real pmperty lcated at ggo SE 6th Stre€t, Williston, Florida, in t evy
County.

z. In accord with the Onden of the Boar4 there is hercby impoeed upon t"o SE 6tb
Strest. a fine in the amount of 1\renty-Five Doilars (SeS.oo) per day, bqinniqt
Decernbcr l. zo4o, for eaeh day the violation(s) continue(s), which shall mntinue to
accrue daityunlees and until the violation(s) is (are) cleard or until srtinguiehed bylaw,
plus Adqfl$ryfetftru Sqin the emount of isso.oo.

DONE AIiID OR"DER.ED THIS a3d day of Nowmber 2o2o, at ffili*oq leray Counp,
Florida.

BOARD OF ANT TMENT AI.ID CODE
THECTTTOF

Chairperson

II. FINALADMINISNRATIIMORDER

CERTIFICATEOFSERVICE

I HERBBY CERTIFY that a tme and correct copy of the above
Fac$ Conclusions of Law and Order has been fumished

(STAXEOFFTORIDA)
(@UNTYOTtE\tr)

Theforegoing instnrmentwasacknowledgedbefore methis24th dayof Novernber aozq
bySharcn Brannan Cbairpercon of the CityofWillistono Boardof Ailjustnentand Code-
Enfortenent, and rrho being personally knorur to me.

Rspondent Barett, Suzanne/ Robinson, Christing
92668 this zath dayof November zoeo.

and foregoing Findings of
bD' eertified mail to the

SE 68th [ane, Morriston, FL

Secretary

wffilxoll6r0sol
ilIx'G

67



Date: 05/0412021

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2021-23:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY, AND CITY
ATTORNEY, OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE
ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT AWARD IN AN AMOUNT OF UP TO
$23,000.00 FROM THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ACTING
THROUGH THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE AND RELIEF
SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT.

REQUESTED BY: BENTON STEGALL AIRPORT MANAGER
PREPARED BY: BENTON STEGALL AIRPORT MANAGER

FISCAL IMPACTS: If the city has enters into an agreement with the FAA, The Williston
Municipal Airport will be eligible to apply for a one time grant of up to $23,000 to assist in the
payment of any pu{pose which airport revenues may lawfully be used for. Our plan is to use
these funds to offset costs incurred for moving the perimeter fence, in addition to hanger and
vehicle repairs.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2021-23 MAP

LEASE XX OTHERDOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

68



FLK/aj
04 /2r /2O2r

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2O2L.O2}

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE AccEPTANcE oF A
GRANT AWARD IN AN AMOUNT OF UP TO $23,OOO.OO, FROM
THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ACTING THROUGH THE
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE AND RELIEF SUPPLEMENTAL
APPROPRIATIONS ACT.

ITHEREAS, the City of Williston, Florida submitted to the Federal Aviation

Administration (hereinafter the "FAA") an Airports Coronavirus Response Grant

Program (hereinafter the "ACRGP") Application for a grant of Federal funds at or

associated with the Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS' in consideration of the promises, representations, and

assurances provided by the City, the FAA has approved the ACRGp Application

for the williston Municipal Airport (hereinafter the ,,Grant,,); and

WHEREAS, the City finds that accepting the terms and conditions of the

Grant, a copy of which is attached hereto as "Exhibit A", is in the best interests

of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THEcITy oF WTLLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

1 The above recitals are all true and accurate and are

incorporated herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The city administration is hereby authorized to accept the grant

award from the United States of America acting through the Federal Aviation

Administration in an amount up to twenty-three thousand dollars and zero cents

($2S,OOO.OO) to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus for the Williston

Page 1 of2

69



FLK/aj
04 /2r /2O2r

Municipal Airport.

Section 3. The Council President, or city administration, is autho rized, to

execute any and all documentation relating to the Grant.

PASSED AND ADoprED at a meeting of the city council on the _ day

of May 2027.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Debra Jones,
City Council President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

By: By
Latricia Wright, City Clerk Frederick L. Koberlein, Jr.,

Cit5r Attorney

Page 2 of 2

70



3-12-0087-02 t_2021

o
U.S. Department
of Transponation
Federal Aviation
Administration

GRANT AGREEMENT

part t - Offer

FederalAward Offer Date April 15, 2021

AtRpoRT CORONAVTRUS REUEF GRANT PROGRAM (ACRGpl

Airport/PlanningArea WillistonMunici palAirport

ACRGPGrantNumber 3-12-0087_OZI_ZA2L

Unique Entityldentifier 010826352

TO: City of Williston

(herein celled the "sponsor"f

FRoM: The United states of America (acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein
called the nF!dl")

WHEREAS, the sponsor has submitted to the FM an Airports coronavirus Response Grant program
(herein called "ACRGP") Application dated March 4, zozl, tora grant of Federal funds at or associatedwith the Williston MunicipalAirport, which is included as part oi*,i, ecne p Grant Agreement; and
WHEREAS, the sponsor has accepted the terms of FM,s AcRGp Grant offer;
WHEREAS, in consideration of the promises, representations and assurances provided by the Sponsor,the FAA has approved the ACRGP Application for the williston Municipat Airport, (herein called the"Grant" or "ACRGp Grant,,) consisting of the following:

This ACRGP Grant is provided in accordance with the coronavirus Response and Relief supplemental
Appropriations Act (GRRSA Act or "the Act"), Division M of public law 116-260, as described below, toprovide eligible sponsors with funding for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization,janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at the airport,.nc o"bt service payments. AcRGpGrant amounts to specific airports are derived by legislative formula (See Division M, Title lv of the Act).
The purpose of this ACRGP Grant is to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavlrus. Funds providedunder this ACRGP Grant Agreement must only be used for purposes directly related to the airport. Suchpurposes can include the reimbursement of an airport's operational and maintenan.u 

"rp"nr", 
or debtservice payments in accordance with the limitations prescribed in the Act. AcRGp Grants may be used toreimburse airport operational and maintenance expenses directly related to williston Municipalincurred no earlier than January 20,2ozo.AcRGP Grants also may be used to reimburse a sponso/s

3

71



3-12{087{21_2021

payment of debt service where such payments occur on or after December 2l,2O2O.Funds providedunder this ACRGP Grant Agreement will be governed by the same principles that govern ,,airport
revenue"' New airport development proiects not directly related to combating the spread of pathogensand approved by the FAA for such puipor"r, may not be funded with this Grant.
Now THEREFORE' in accordance with the applicable provisions of the CRRSA Act, public Law 116-260,the representations contained.in the Grant Application, anu in consioeration of (a) the sponsor/sacceptance of this offer; and, (b) the benefits to ,..rr" to the United states and the public from theaccomplishment of the Grant and in compliance with the conditions as herein provided,
THE FEDEML AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FoR AND oN BEHATF oF THE UNTTED sTATEs, HEREBvOFFERS AND AGREES to pay 100/o percent of the allowable costs incurred as a result of and inaccordance with this Grant Agreement.

Assistance Listings Number (Formerly CFDA Numberf: 20.10G

This offer is made on and suBJEcr To rHE FottowrNc TERMS AND coNDriloNS:

CONDITIONS

1' Maximum obligation' The maximum obligation of the united states payable under this offer is523,000, allocated as follows:

523,000 Non primary KUIOZL
2' Grant Performance' This ACRGP Grant Agreement is subject to the following federal awardrequirements:

a. The period of performance:

1' shall start on the date the sponsor formally accepts this agreement, and is the date signedby the last sponsor signatory to the agreement. The end date of the period of performance
is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of acceptance. The period of performance
end date shall not affect, relieve or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extendbeyond the closeout of this Grant Agreement.

2' Means the total estimated time interval between the start of an initial Federal award andthe planned end date, which may include one or more funded portions, or budget periods.(2 Code ofFederat Regutations (CFR) S 200.1)

b. The Budget period:

L' The budget period for this ACRGP Grant is 4 years (1,460 calendar days). pursuant to 2 cFR
S 200'403{h), the sponsor may charge to the Grant only allowable costs incurred duringthe budget period.

2' Means the time interval from the start date of a funded portion of an award to the enddate of that funded portion during which the sponsor is authorized to expend the fundsawarded, incruding any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to $200.309.
c. Close out and Termination.

1' Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the Sponsor must submit all Grant closeoutdocumentation and liquidate (pay-off) all obligations incurred under this award no laterthan 120 calendar days after the end date of ihe period or pe.rom.nce. lf the sponsordoes not submit all required closeout documentation within this time period, the FAq will

4

72



3-L2-0087421-202t

proceed to close out the grant within one year of the period of performance end date withthe information avairabre at the end of r.20 days. tz crn s 200.344)
2' The FAA may terminate this ACRGP Grant, in whole or in part, in accordance with theconditions set forth in 2 cFR I 200.340, or other Federal regulatory or statutory authorities

as applicable.

3' Unallowablg costs. The sponsor shall not seek reimbursement for any costs that the FAA hasdetermined to be unallowable under the CRRSA Act.

4' lndirect costs - spgnsot. The sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying theindirect cost rate identified in the Grant Application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable costs forSponsor direct salaries and wages only,

5' Flnal Federal Share of costs. The United states' share of allowable Grant costs is 100%.
6' comDletint the Grlnt without Delav and in conformance with Requirements. The sponsor mustcarry out and complete the Grant without undue delays.nd in *ordance with this ACRGp Grant

Agreement, the CRRSA Act, and the regulations, policies, standards, and procedures of the
Secretary of Transportation (,,Secretary,,). pursuant to 2 CFR S 200.30g, the Sponsor agrees toreport to the FM any disengagement from funding eligible expenses under the Grant that exceedsthree months or a 25 percent reduction in time devoted to the Grant, and request prior approval
from FAA' The report must include a reason for the stoppage. The sponsor agrees to comply with
the attached assurances, which are part ofthis agreement and any addendum that may be attached
hereto at a later date by mutual consent.

7. 
. The FAA reserves the right to amend or

withdraw this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the sponsor.

8' offer Exoiration Date. This offer will expire and the united states will not be obligated to pay anypart of the costs unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before May 14, 2o2!, or
such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.

9' lmorooer use of Federal Fqnds. The sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary torecover Federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or
misused in any other manner, including uses that violate this AcRGp Grant Agreement, the cRRsA
Act or other provision of applicable law. For the purposes of this ACRGp Grant Agreement, the term
"Federal funds" means funds however used or dispersed by the sponsor, that were originally paid
pursuant to this or any other Federal grant agreement(s). The Sponsor must return the recovered
Federal share, including funds recovered by settlement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The
Sponsor must furnish to the secretary, upon request, all documents and records pertainint to thedetermination of the amount of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or
other efforts taken to recover such funds. All settlements or other final positions or tile Sponsor, in
court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal share require advance approval by the
Secretary.

10'.TheUnitedStatesisnotresponsibleorliablefor
damage to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or relate to this ACRGp Grant
Agreement, including, but not limited to, any action taken by a Sponsor related to or arising from,
directly or indirectly, this ACRGp Grant Agreement.

5

73



3-12-0087-021-202t

u..
a' Requirement for System for Award Management (sAM): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from

this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its
information in the SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial report reguired under this
grant, or receives the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review
and update the information at least annually after the initial registration and more frequently if
required by changes in information or another award term, Additional information about
registration procedures may be found at the SAM website {currently at http://www.sanr.sov).

b. Unique entity identifier (UEl) means a 12-character alpha-numeric value used to identify a
specific commercial, nonprofit or governmental entity. A UEI may be obtained from SAM,gov at
htt ps :/lsarn.gov/SAM/paees/publ icli nclex. isf .

12. Electronic Grant Pavment{s}. Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each
payment request under this agreement electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System for
Department of Transportation (Dor) Financial Assistance Awardees.

13. Air and Water Qualitv. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable air and water quality
standards for all projects in this grant. lf the Sponsor fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA
may suspend, cancel, or terminate this agreement.

14. Financial Reoorting and Pavment Reouirements. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial
reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate
reports.

L5. Buv American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, in accordance with 49 United
States Code (U's'c.) $ 50101 the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor
to acquire any steel or manufactured goods produced outside the United States to be used for any
project for which funds are provided under this grant. The Sponsor will include a provision
implementing Buy American in every contract.

15. Audits for Sponsors.

PUBLIc SPONSORS. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the
FederalAudit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse's lnternet Data Entry System at
http://harvester'census.eovlfacweb/ . Upon request ofthe FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one copy
of the completed audit to the FAA.

17. Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a "covered transaction" as defined by 2 CFR g
180.200, the Sponsor must:

a. Verify the non-Federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:

t. Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as maintained within the System for
Award Management {SAM)to determine if the non-Federal entity is excluded or
disqualified; or

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-Federal entity attesting the entity is not
excluded or disqualified from participating; or

3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transastions attesting the individual or firm is not
excluded or disqualified from participating.

6

74



3-12-OO87-021-202t

b. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR $ 180.330 when entering into lower-tier
transactions (e.g. sub-contracts).

c. lmmediately disclose to the FAA whenever the Sponsor (1) learns the Sponsor has entered into
a covered transaction with an ineligible entity, or (2) suspends or debars a contractor, person,
or entity.

18. Ban o.n Textint While Drlvins.

a. ln accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging
While Oriving, October 1,2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving
December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted
drivers including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work
for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work relating to this ACRGP Grant
or subgrant funded by this Grant.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate wlth the size of the
business, such as:

A. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to
prohibit text messaging while driving and

B. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks
associated with texting while driving.

b. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all
subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts funded by this ACRGP Grant.

19. Traffickins in Persono.

a. You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this ACRGP Grant, and subrecipients'
employees may not -
1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is

in effect;

2. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effecU or

3. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the ACRGP Grant.

b. The FAA as the Federal awarding agencv may unilaterally terminate this award, without
penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity -
1, ls determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph A of this ACRGP Grant

Agreement term; or

7. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to terminate the
ACRGP Grant Agreement to have violated a prohibition in paragraph A.1 of this ACRGP
Grant term through conduct that is either -
A. Associated with performance under this ACRGP grant; or

B. lmputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the
conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 1g0, "OMB
Guidelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement),"as implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR Part 1200.

7

75



3-72-0087-027-2027

c' You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source alleging aviolation of a prohibition in paragraph A during this ACRGp Grant Agreement.
d' our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph A of this section:

1' lmplements section 106(9) of the Trafficking Victims protection Act of 2000 (TVpA), asamended (22 U.S.C. S 7104(9)), and

2' ls in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the FM
under this ACRGP 6rant.

20. EmDlovee protection from Reorisal,

a. Prohibition of Reprisals -
1' ln accordance with 41 u.s.c. $ 47L2, an employee of a grantee or subgrantee may not be

discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing to aperson or body described in sub-paragraph (A)(z), information that the employee
reasonably believes is evidence of:

a. Gross mismanagement of a Federal grant;
b. Gross waste ofFederal funds;
c' An abuse of authority relating to implementation or use of Federal funds;d. A substantiar and specific danger to pubric hearth or safety; ore' A vioration of raw, rule, or reguration related to a Federar grant.

2' Persons and bodies covered: The persons and bodies to which a disclosure by an employee
is covered are as follows:

a' A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress;b. An lnspector General;
c. The Government Accountability Office;
d' A Federal office or employee responsible for oversight of a grant program;e. A court or grand jury;
f. A management office of the grantee or subgrantee; org. A Federal or State regulatory enforcement agency.

3' Submission of Complaint - A person who believes that they have been subjected to a
reprisal prohibited by paragraph A of this ACRGP Grant Agreement may submit a complaint
regarding the reprisalto the office of lnspector General (olG) for the u.S. Department of
Transportation.

4' Time Limitation for submittal of a complaint - A complaint may not be brought under this
subsection more than three years after the date on which the alleged reprisal took place,

5' Required Actions of the lnspector General - Actions, limitations, and exceptions of the
rnspector Generals office are estabrished under 41 u.s.c. s 47Lz(bl,

6' Assumption of Rights to civil Remedy - upon receipt of an explanation of a decision not
to conduct or continue an investigation by the office of lnspector General, the person
submitting a complaint assumes the right to a civil remedy under 41 u.s.c. S +itz(cl.

21' Limitations. Nothing provided herein shall be construed to limit, cancel, annul, or modifythe termsof any Federalgrant agreement(s), including all terms and assurances related thereto, that have
been entered into by the sponsor and the FAA prior to the date ofthis ACRGp Grant Agreement.

8

76



3-L2-0087Q21-2A2t

22' Face coverinqs Policv, The sponsor agrees to implement a face-covering (mask) policy to combatthe spread of pathogens. This policy must include a requirement that all persons wear a mask, inaccordance with centers for Disease control (cDC) andTransportation Security Administration (T5A)requirements, as applicable, at all times while in all public areas of the airport property, except tothe extent exempted under those requirements. This special condition requires the airport sponsorcontinue to require masks until ExecLrtive Orcler 13
lnternationalTravel, is no longer effective.

SPECIAT CONDITIONS FOR USE OF ACRGP FUNDS

CONDITIONS FOR ROITING STOCK/EQUIPMENT.

1' Equipment or vehicle Replacement. The sponsor agrees that when using funds provided by this
Erant to replace equipment, the proceeds from the trade-in or sale of such replaced equipmentshall be classified and used as airport revenue.

2' Equipment Acauisition. The sponsor agrees that for any equipment acquired with funds provided
by this grant, such equipment shall be used solely for purposes directly related to the airport.

3' low Emission svstems. The sponsor agrees that vehicles and equipment acquired with fundsprovided in this grant:

a. will be maintained and used at the airport for which they were purchased; and
b' will not be transferred, relocated, or used at another airport without the advance consent ofthe FAA.

The sponsor further agrees that it will maintain annual records on individual vehicles andequipment, project expenditures, cost effectiveness, and emission reductions.

CONDITIONS FOR UTILITIES AND LAND.
4' Utilities Proration. For purposes of computing the united states' share of the allowable airportoperations and maintenance costs, the allowable cost of utilities incurred by the sponsor to operateand maintain airport(s) included in the Grant must not exceed the percent attributable to thecapital or operating costs of the airport.

5. utiliw Relocation in Grant. The sponsor understands and agrees that:
a' The United states will not participate in the cost of any utility relocation unless and until thesponsor has submitted evidence satisfactory to the FAA that the Sponsor is legally responsiblefor payment of such costs;

b' FAA participation is limited to those utilities located on-airport or off-airport only where theSponsor has an easement for the utility; and

c. The utirities must serve a purpose directry rerated to the Airport.

9

77



3-72-0087-O27-2A27

The sponsor's acceptance of this offer and ratification and adoption of the ACRGp Grant Application
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the sponsor. The offer and
Acceptance shall comprise an ACRGP Grant Agreement, as provided by the GRRSA Act, constituting thecontractual obligations and rights of the United states and the sponsor with respect to this Grant. Theeffective date of this ACRGP Grant Agreement is the date of the sponsor's acceptance of this offer.

Please read the following information; By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically' lf you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

Dated AprilL5,2A27

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

,,: -,*;/r.ll?z4a.zu

(Signoture)

Bart Vernace

(Typed None)

Manager

(Title of FAA Offictol)

10

78



3-12&8742L-202L

Part ll - Acceptance

The Sponsor does hereby ratifu and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties,
covenants, and agreements contained in the ACRGP Grant Application and incorporated materials
referred to in the foregoing Offer under Part I of this ACRGP Grant Agreement, and does hereby accept
this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and
in the ACRGP Grant Application and all applicable terms and conditions provided for in the CRRSA Act
and other applicable provisions of Federal law.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. lf you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I

Dated

City of Williston
(Nome of Sponsot)

(Signotu re of Sponsols Desig natlve Officiot/Re presentouve)

By:

(Type Name of Sponso/s Designotive OfJiciol/Representotive)

Title:
(Title of Sponsol s Designatlve Offtctdt/Representdtive )

1 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federalgovernment is a violation of 1g U.S.C,
Section 1001 (False statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

LL

79



3-12-0087-021-202L

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY

l, Frederick L. Koberlein, Jr , acting as Attorney forthe Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the
laws of the State of Florida . Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the
actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponso/s official representative has been duly authorized and that
the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State
and the CRRSA Act. The Sponsor understands funding made available under this Grant Agreement may
only be used to reimburse for airport operational and maintenance expenses, and debt service
paYments. The Sponsor further understands it may submit a separate request to use funds for new
airport/project development purposes, subject to additionalterms, conditions, and assurances. Further,
it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor
in accordance with the terms thereof.

Please read the following lnformation: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. lf you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

Dated at April28,2O2l

(Slgnoture of Sponsor's Attomey)

t2

80



3-12-0087-027-2021

AIRPORT CORONAVIRUS RELIEF GRANT PROGRAM (ACRGP} ASSURANCES
ArnpoRr Sponsons

A. General.

1. These Airport Coronavirus Relief Grant Program (AcRGp) Assurances are required to be
submitted as part of the application by sponsors requesting funds under the provisions of the
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2020 (cRRsA Act or ,,the
Act"), Public Law 116-260. As used herein, the term "public agency sponsor" means a public
agency with control of a public-use airport; the term "private sponsor" means a private owner
ofa public-use airport; and the term "sponsor" includes both public agenry sponsors and
private sponsors.

2' upon acceptance ofthis ACRGP Grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated
into and become part of this ACRGP Grant Agreement.

B. SponsorCertification.

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this ACRGp Grant that:
It will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies,
guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Federal
funds for this ACRGp Grant including but not limited to the followingr

FEDERAT leersunor

a. 49 U.S.C. Chapter 471, as applicable

b. Davis-Bacon Act - 40 U.S.C. 27G(a), et. seg"

c. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act - 29 U.S.C. 201, et. seq.

d. Hatch Act - 5 U.S.C. 1501, et. seo.2

e. uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition policies Act of 1g70 Title 42 u.5.c.
4601, et. seq.

f. National Historic preservation Act of 1966 - section 106 - 16 u.s.c. 470(f).

s. Archeological and Historic preservation Act of 1974 - 16 u.s.c. 4G9 through 469c.

h' Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act - 2s U-s.c. section 3001, et. seq.

i. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended,

j. CoastalZone Management Act, p.L. 93-205, as amended.

k. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 - section 102(a) - 42 u.s.c. 4oL2a.

l. Title 49, U.S.C., Section 303, (formerly known as Section 4{f)).

m. Rehabilitation Act of L973 - 29 U.S.C. 794.

n. Title vt of the civit Rights Act of 1964 (42 u.s.c. s 2oo0d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin).

o. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. g 12101 et seg.), prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability).

13

81



3-72-0087-021-2021

p. Age Discrimination Act of L975 _ 42 U.S.C. G101, et. seo.

q. American rndian Rerigious Freedom Act, p.1.95-341, as amended.

r. Architectural Barriers Act of 196g _ 42 U.S.C. 415L, et. seq.

s. Power plant and lndustrial Fuel use Act of 1g7g - section 403_ 2 U.S.C. g373.

t. contract work Hours and safety standards Act - 40 u.s.c. 327, et. seq.

u, Copeland Anti-kickback Act - 18 U.S.C. 874.1.

v. National Environmental policy Act of 1969 - 42 u.s.c. 4321, et. seq.

w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, p.L. 90-542, as amended.

x. Single Audit Act of 1984 - 31 U.S.C. 7501, et. seo. 2

y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 _ 41 U.S.C. 702 through 706.

z' The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 200G, as amended (pub, L. tog-zg2,
asamended bysection 6202of pub. [. LLO_ZS2|

Execurrvr ORDERs

a. Executive Order 11246 - Equal Employment Opportunity

b. Executive Order 11990 - protection of Wetlands

c. Executive Order 11998 - Flood plain Management

d. Executive order L2372 - lntergovernmental Review of Federal programs

e' Executive order 12699 - Seismic safety of Federal and Federaily Assisted New Building
Construction

f. Executive Order 12898 - EnvironmentalJustice

g' Executive order 14005 - Ensuring the Future ls Made in All of America by Alt of America,s
Workers.

Fgornnl Rgcuunors

a' 2 CFR Part 180 - oMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement).

b' 2 CFR Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards. 3,4

c. 2 CFR Part 1200 - Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment.

d' 28 cFR Part 35 - Discrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government
Services.

e' 28 CFR 5 50.3 - U.S. Departrnent of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title Vl of the Civil
Rights Act ol L964.

f . 29 CFR Part 1 - procedures for predetermination of wage rates. 1

8' 29 CFR Part 3 - Contractors and subcontractors on public buildin6 or public work financed in
whole or part by loans or grants from the United States- 1

t4

82



3-12-0087{27-2027

h. 29 CFR Part 5 - [abor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering Federally financed
and assisted construction (also labor standards provisions applicable to non-construction
contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act). I

i. 41 cFR Part 60 - office of Federal contract compliance programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally assisted contracting requirements), 1

j. 49 CFR Part 20 - New restrictions on lobbying.

k. 49 CFR Part2I * Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation - effectuation of Title Vlof the civil Rights Act of 1g64.

l. 49 CFR Part 23 - Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport Concessions.

m. 49 CFR Part 26 - Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of
Tra nsportation Program.

n' 49 CFR Part27 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities
Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance. 1

o. 49 CFR Part 28 - Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in programs or
Activities conducted by the Depaftment of Transportation.

p' 49 CFR Part 30 - Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and services of countries
that deny procurement market access to U.S. contractors.

q. 49 CFR Part 32 - Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial
Assistance).

r. 49 CFR Part 37 - Transportation Services for lndividuals with Disabilities (ADA).

s' 49 CFR Part 41- Seismic safety of Federal and Federally assisted or regulated new building
construction.

FOOTNOTES TO ASSURANCE ACRGP ASSURANCE 8.1.
1 These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors.2 These laws do not apply to private sponsors.3 Cost principles established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart E must be used as guidelines for

determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses4 Audit requirernents established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for audits

Sprclrrc AssuRANcEs

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations,
or circulars are incorporated by reference in this Grant Agreernent.

1. Purpose Directly Related to the Airport

It certifies that the reimbursement sought is for a purpose directly related to the airport.

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor.

a. Public Agency Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Granl and to finance and carry out the proposed grant;
that an official decision has been made by the applicant's governing body authorizing the filing
of the application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing

15

83



3-12-OO8742t-202L

and authorizing the person identified as the official representatave of the applicant to act in
connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required

b. Private Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the proposed Grant
and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement. lt shall
designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file
this application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in
connection with this application; and to provide such additional information as may be
required.

3. Good Title.

It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to the
landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the Secretary that
good title will be acquired.

4. Preseruing Rights and Powers.

a. lt will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and
powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this Grant
Agreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire,
extinguish, or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere
with such performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the
Secretary.

b. lf the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that
the airport will continue to function as a public-use airport in accordance with this Grant
Agreement.

c. lf an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any agency or
person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve
sufficient rights and authority to insure that the airport will be operated and maintained in
accordance Title 49, United States Code, the regulations, and the terms and conditions of this
Grant Agreement.

5. Consistency with Local Plans.

Any project undertaken by this Grant Agreement is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the
time of submission of the ACGRP application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in
which the project is located to plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

5. Consideration of Local lnterest.

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where any project
undertaken by this Grant Agreement may be located.

7. Consultation with Users.

ln making a decision to undertake any airport development project undertaken by this Grant
Agreement, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the airport at
which project is proposed.

16

84



85



3-72-W8742L-202t

8. Pavement Preventative Maintenance.

With respect to a project undertaken by this Grant Agreement for the replacement or
reconstruction of pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an
effective airport pavement maintenance-management program and it assures that it will use such
program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with Federal
financial assistance at the airport, including ACRGP funds provided under this Grant Agreement. lt
will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement management programs as the
Secretary determines may be useful.

9. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements.

a, lt shall keep all Grant accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by
the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of the Grant in connection with which
this Grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the Grant
supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the Grant. The
accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will facilitate
an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1994.

b. lt shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the united states, or
any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examination, any
books, documents, papers, and records of the recipient that are pertinent to this Grant. The
Secretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. ln any case in
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of
the proceeds of a Grant or relating to the Grant in connection with which this Grant was given
or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United
States not later than six (6) months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was
made.

10. Minimum Wage Rates.

It shall include, in all contracts in excess of 52,000 for work on any projects funded under this grant
agreement which involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, to be
predetermined by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40
U'S.C. 275a-276a-51, which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, and such minimum
rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included in proposals or bids for the work.

11. Veteran's Preference.

It shall include in all contracts for work on any project funded under this grant agreement which
involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to insure that, in the employment of labor (except in
executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam era
veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-lrag war veterans, disabled veterans, and small
business concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in Section 47112 of Title
49, United States Code. However, this preference shall appty only where the individuals are
available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

12. Operation and Maintenance.

a' The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport,
other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be operated at all times in a
safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the minimum standards as may be
required or prescribed by applicable Federal, state and local agencies for maintenance and

t7

86



3-t2-008742L-202t

operation. lt will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with
its use for airport purposes. lt will suitably operate and maintain the airport and all facilities
thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to climatic and flood conditions. Any proposal
to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be approved by the
Secretary. ln furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have in effect arrangements for-
1. operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required;

2. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, including
tempora ry conditions; and

3' Promptly notifying airmen of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the airport.
Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for
aeronautical use during temporary periods when snow flood or other climatic conditions
interfere with such operation and maintenance. Further, nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the maintenance, repair, restoration, or replacement of any structure or
facility which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or other
condition or circumstance beyond the control ofthe sponsor.

b. tt will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it owns or controls
upon which Federal funds have been expended.

13. Hazard Removaland Mitl&tion,

It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is reguired to protect
instrument and visual operations to the airport (including established minimum flight altitudes) will
be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or
othenvise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of
future airport hazards.

14. Compatible Land Use.

It will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, including the adoption of zoning laws, to
restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and
purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft.

15. Exclusive Rights.

The sponsor shall not grant an exclusive right to use an air navigation facility on which this Grant
has been expended' However, providing services at an airport by only one fixed-based operator is
not an exclusive right if-
a. it is unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impracticalfor more than one fixed-based operator

to provide the services; and

b' allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide the services requires a reduction in
space leased under an agreement existing on Septembe r 3,1982, between the operator and
the airport.

16. Airport Revenues.

a. This Grant shall be available for any purpose for which airport revenues may lawfully be used to
prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. Funds provided under this ACRGp Grant
Agreement will only be expended for the capital or operating costs of the airport; the local
airport system; or other local facilities which are owned or operated by the owner or operator
of the airport(s) subject to this agreement and all applicable addendums for costs related to

18

87



3-L2{0,87{.27-2021

operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of
pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments as prescribed in the Act

b. For airport development, 49 U.S.C. S 47133 applies.

17. Reports and lnspections.

It will:

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as the Secretary
may reasonably request and make such reports available to the public; make available to the
public at reasonable times and places a report of the airport budget in a format prescribed by
the secretary;

b. in a format and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make available
to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report listing in detail:

1. all amounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government and the purposes for
which each such payment was made; and

2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the
amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property.

18. Land for Federal Facilities.

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any air traffic
control or air navigation activities, or weather-reporting and communication activities retated to air
traffic control, any areas of land or water, or estate therein, or rights in buildings of the sponsor as
the Secretary considers necessary or desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at
Federal expense of space or facilities for such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof will be
made available as provided herein within four months after receipt of a written reguest from the
Secretary.

19. Airport layout Plan.

a. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 1G3, it will keep up
to date at all times an airport layout plan of the airport showing:

1. boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries
of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for airport purposes and proposed
additions thereto;

2. the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such
as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars and roads), including all
proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities;

3. the location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of all existing
improvements thereon; and

4- all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft acrossthe airport's property
boundary, Such airport layout plans and each amendment, revision, or modification
thereof, shall be subject to the approval ofthe Secretary which approval shall be
evidenced by the signature of a duly authorized representative of the Secretary on the face
of the airport layout plan. The sponsor will not make or permh anv changes or alterations
in the airpoft or any of its facilities which are not in conformity with the airport layout plan

19

88



3-n-ao87-o2L-202L

as approved by the Secretary and which might, in the opinion of the secretary, adversely
affect the safety, utility or efficiency of the airport.

b' Subjea to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law ILS-254, Section 163, if a change or
alteration in the airport or the facilities is made which the Secretary determines adversely
affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of any federally owned, leased, or funded property on or
off the airport and which is not in conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the
Secretary, the owner or operator will, if requested, by the Secretary (t) eliminate such adverse
effect in a manner approved by the Secretary; or (2) bear all costs of relocating such property
(or replacement thereof) to a site acceptable to the Secretary and all costs of restoring such
property (or replacement thereof) to the level of safety, utility, efficienry, and cost of operation
existing before the unapproved change in the airport or its facilities except in the case of a
relocation or replacement of an existing airport facility due to a change in the Secretar/s
design standards beyond the control of the airport sponsor.

20. Civil Rights.

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shall, on
the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any
activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds received from this 6rant.

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in Sg 21.23 (b) and
21.23 (e) of 49 CFR Part 2!, the sponsor will facilitate all programs, operate all facilities, or
conduct all programs in compliance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by or
pursuant to these assurances.

b. Applicability

1' Programs and Activities. lf the sponsor has received a grant (or other Federal assistance)
for any of the sponsor's program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the
sponsor's programs and activities

2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other Federalfinancial assistance to construct,
expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance
extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance in
the form of, or for the acquisition of, real property or an interest in real property, the
assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.

c. 0uration

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is
to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property. or interest therein, or
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any
transferee for the longer of the following periods:

1. So long as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision
of similar services or benefits; or

2' so long as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property.

d. Required SoJicitation Language

20

89



3-12-00,87.{.2L-ZO?'L

It will include the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests for Proposals for
work, or material under this Grant and in all proposals for agreements, including airport
concessions, regardless of funding source:

"The City of Williston, in accordance with the provisions of Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of
L964 (78 Stat, 252,42 U.S.C. 05 2000d to 2000d-a) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all
bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged
business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin
in consideration for an award."

e. Required Contract Provisions.

1. lt will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts and
regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT, and
incorporating the acts and regulations into the contracts by reference in every contract or
agreement subject to the non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT
Acts and regulations.

2. lt will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every contract that is

subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations.

3. lt will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the land, in
any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property,
structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor.

4. lt will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin, creed, sex, aBe, or handicap as a covenant running with the
land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, or similar instruments entered into by
the sponsor with other parties:

A. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the
applicable activity, grant, or program; and

B. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property
acquired or improved under the applicable activity, grant, or program.

C. lt will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the
Secretaryto give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-
grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest,
and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply
with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this
assurance.

D. lt agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to
any matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

21. Foreign Market Restrictlons.

It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be used to fund any activity that uses any
product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country is listed by
the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for
products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction.

2t

90



22. Policies, Standards and Specifications.

It will carry out any project funded under an Airport Coronavirus Relief program Grant in
accordance with policies, standards, and specifications approved by the seiretary including, but notlimited to, current FAA Advisory circulars for AIP projects, as of March 4,2ozt,included in thisgrant, and in accordance with applicable state policies, standards, and specifications approved by
the Secretary.

23. Access By lntercity Buses.

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable, intercity buses or
other modes of transportation to have access to the airporq however, it has no obligation to fund
special facilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation.

24. Dlsadvantaged Business Enterprises.

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the award andperformance of any DoT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR part 2G, or in the award andperformance of any concession activity contract covered by ag cFR part 23. ln addition, the sponsor
shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, nationat oiigin or sex in the administration of itsDisadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Airport concesiions Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (ACDBE) programs or the requirements of 49 cFR parts 23 and 2G. The sponsor shall take
all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 25 to ensure nondiscrimination in theaward and administration of DoT-assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor,s
DBE and ACDBE programs' as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and z3,and as approved by DoT, areincorporated by reference in this agreement. lmplementation of these programs is a legal obligation
and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. upon notification
to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose
sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter forenforcement under 18 u.s.c. 1001 andlor the Program Fraud Gvil Remedies Act of 1936 (31 u.s,c.
3801).

25. Acquisition Thresholds.

The FAA deems equipment to mean tangible personal property having a useful life greater than oneyear and a per-unit acquisition cost equal to or greater than 55,000. procurements Ly micro-purchase means the acquisition of goods or services for which the aggregate dollar amount does
not exceed $1O,O0O, unless authorized in accordance with 2 CFR S 200,320. procurernent by smallpurchase procedures means those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securinggoods or services that do not exceed the 5250,000 threshold for simplified acquisitions.

3-L2-0087421-2021

22

91



3-12-0087-021-202t

Current FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use in Alp Funded and pFC

Approved prdects

view the most current series 150 Advisory circulars {AG) for Airport projects at
anO

23

92



Date: May 4,2021

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

ORDINANCE NO. 690: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA;
CHAPTER 2 ADMINISTRATION; ARTICLE 6 FINANCES; REMOVING LANGUAGE
IN SECTION 2-232 COLLECTION OF EXPENSES AND REPLACING WITH NEW
LANGUAGE FOR COLLECTION OF FEES FOR ALL PAST DUE ACCOUNTS, OF
ALL TYPES; PROVIDING F.OR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

REQUESTED BY:
PREPARED BY:

CITY MANAGER
JACKIE GORMAN, CITY PLANNER

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:
If you will recall on February 2,202I the City approved a Contract with Valley Collection
Service, LLC (VCS, Inc.) for the collection of 1) all utility accounts; 2) Airport lease and rental
billing accounts; and 3) all other City accounts receivable invoices that are 90+ days delinquent.

VCS, Inc., as part of the signed Contract, charges I5Yo for any accounts assigned to the agency
regardless of the amount of the account whether paid to VCS or the Client. In order for us to
move forward we were advised by our City Attomey to amend the Code to allow collection fees
to be charged for all past due accounts, ofall types.

LEGAL REVIEW: Required

FISCAL IMPACTS: Revenues for collection of unpaid accounts

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval of First Reading

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT x ORDINANCE 690 MAP

LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONSULTANT OR PARTY TO ACTION HAS BEEN NOTIF'IED
COUNCIL ACTION: APPROVED DENIED

93



ORDINANCE NO.690

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA' CHAPTER 2
ADMINISTRATION; ARTICLE 6 FINANCES; REMOVING LANGUAGE IN
SECTION 2-232 COTLECTION OF EXPENSES AND ADDING LANGUAGE FOR
THE COLLECTION OF FEES FOR ALt PAST DUE ACCOUNTS, OF ALL TYPES;
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston currently has regulations concerning finances; and

WHEREAS,language needs to be added in order to assign a collection agency to collect
for all past due accounts, of all types; and,

WHEREAS the City of Williston City Council did hold a public hearing on the matter;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Williston City Council has agreed that it is in the best interest of
the Citizens to amend the Code of Ordinances of the City of Williston to include a
collection fee for past due accounts of all types; and

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold the required public hearings, under the
provisions of the adoption procedures established in Chapter 'l,66,Floida Statutes,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FIORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section'l- Amendino Chanler 2- Article 6. Subsection2-232 as follows

CHAPTER 2 ADMINISTRATION; ARTICTE 6 FINANCES SECTION 2-232
COLLECTION OF EXPENSES

Sec.2-232. - Same-Collection of expenses.

The effieers ef the eity with whern sueh applieatilertas previded in -re+ie+4?31-enay
.In

addition to fees for permit applications provided in section 2-231, a fee will be charged
in connection with the collection of fees for all past due accounts, of all types.

Section 2. SeverabiliW. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and
effect.

94



Section 3. Codification. It is the intention of the City Council of the City, that the
provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Code of Ordinances
of the City and that the Sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered, re-lettered and
the word "Ordinance" may be changed to "Section," " Atticle" or other word or phrase
in order to accomplish such intention.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
adoption.

PASSED ON FIRST READING, THIS DAY OF 2021

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting by the City
Council of the City of Willistoru Florida, after properly dispensing with the second
reading, on final reading this day of 2021

ATTEST: CITY OF WILLISTON

LATRICIA WRIGHT

CITY CLERK

DEBRA IONES

PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

FRED L. KOBERLEIN,IR., CITY ATTORNEY

95



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

May 4,2021

TOPIC: Special Exception SE 2021-01

REQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, community Deveropment & Grants Manager
BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Planning Commission - Tuesday, April 2Z,202lat 6:00 pM

City Council - May 4,2021

I. APPLICATION SUMMARY:

Applicant: Special Exception SE 202'1.-01, an application by received from Rahi one
Property, LLC requesting a Special Exception to allow alcohol sales "package store,, in a
Commercial Intensive (c-2) District. The applicant was represented by Norm D. Fugate,
P.A. I Attorney at Law.

Subject property:

13 W. NOBLE AVE / O6-13-Lg WILLISTON BLK 4 LOTS 1.2 &4 OR BOOK 1341 PAGE
285 Parcel ID 0552800000

Future Land Use designation: Commercial Zoning: Commercial Intensive (C-2)

Current use(s): vacant Prior use: Gas station/convenience store

96



Adjacent zoningand land uses:

North: Central Business District
East: Commercial

South: Commercial
West: Commercial

II. BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS

Introduction and Background:

Rahi One Property LLC. is the owner of the subject property located at 13 W. Noble Ave.

The Applicant is requesting the opportunity to sell on-premise beer, wine and liquor as
part of the proposed "package store,, establishment.

Analysis:

The subject property is located DOWNTOWN and is in the Commercial Future Land Use
Map (FLUM) category, a'.d Commercial Intensive zoning district.

The applicant indicates its desire to be part of the community and operate a good
establishment. The property is now vacant and this will be a new store downtown
meeting our commercial development design requirements.

The proposed establishment is allowed use in the commercial zoning district as
follows: sec.6o-372.- permitted principal uses and structures.

The City's CRA Plan and Economic Development Strategy encourages new businesses in
the downtown area. Considering the proper balance between encouraging pedestrian
orientation of the downtown area and activities that involve alcohol and how it may
become intrusive is the of PI
and Citlz Council with the special exception process.

the W D men , the City Council
may approve/ approve with special conditions and safeguards, or deny a special

97



exception depending upon whether or not it finds that a project promotes public healttu
saf.ety, moral, otder, comfort, convenience, appearance or prosperity for the general
welfare of the residents of the City of Williston. Such a determination may be dependent
upon special conditions of approval and findings that satisfactory provision and
arrangement has been made concerning the following matters, where applicable:

' Ingress and egress to property and proposed structures thereon with particular
reference to automotive and pedestrian safety and convenience, traffic flow and
control, and access in case of fire or catastrophe.

' Off-street parking and loading areas, where required, with particular attention to
the items in (a) above and the economic, noise, glare, or odor effect of the special
exception on adjoining properties and properties generally in the district.

' Refuse and service areas, with particular reference to items (a) and (b) above.

' Utilities, with reference to locations, availability, and compatibility.

' Screening and buffering with reference to type, dimensions, and character.

' Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting with reference to glare,traffic safety,
economic effects, and compatibility and harmony with properties in the district.

. Required yards and other open space.

' Considerations relating to general compatibility with adjacent properties and
other property in the district including but not limited to:

o Conformity with the comprehensive plan and the effects upon the
comprehensive plan.

o Existing land use patterns.

o The impact of the proposed use upon the load on public facilities such as
schools, utilities, and streets.

o Changed or changing conditions which find the proposed use to be
advantageous to the community and the neighborhood.

o The impact of the proposed use upon living conditions in the
neighborhood.

o The impact of the proposed use upon traffic congestion or other public
safety matters.

o The impact of the proposed use on drainage.

o The impact of the proposed use upon property values in the adjacent area.

98



o The impact of the property use upon light and air to adjacent areas.

o The impact of the proposed use upon the improvement or development of
adjacent property in accordance with existing regulations.

o The impact of the proposed use with regard to the scale and needs of the
neighborhood or the community.

Summarv:

The Applicant is requesting the opportunity to sell beer, wine and liquor as part of the
proposed "package store" establishment for off-premise consumption. Beer and wine are
allowed without a special exception. This is solely a special exception for distilled
beverages or "liquor".

Sales of liquor are not allowed within 300 churches.

"It shall be unlawful for any person or entity to sell, distribute, serve, or otherwise allow to be consumed,
any alcoholic beverage, within 300 feet of any parcel on which a church is located, except for those persons
or entities permitted and licensed by the state and identified in any oith" foilo-ing subsections:(1.) vendors
of malt beverages or wine intended only for off-premises consurnption;(2) entitieJpermitted as to wine forreligious or sacramental purposes;(3) restaurants selling or serving malt beverages or wine intended only
for on-premises consumption.,,

This parcel is NoT within 300 feet of a parcel on which a church is located so that is NoT
part of this consideration. However, representatives from the United Methodist Church
of Williston were in attendance to speak against allowing the special exception.

OVER 300 Feet

Applicant

Church

This applicant offered to be closed on Sundays however, that is not required in the code

99



Sec. 6-3. - Hours.

(a)Consumption off the premises. No alcoholic beverages may be sold, consumed, served, or permitted tobe served or consumed in any place holding an alcoholi beverage license under state law, for consumptionoff the premises, between the hours of midnight and 7:00 u.*.-or the followin g day;provided, however,that on January 1., the foregoing restrictions shall not apply from midnight to 1:00 a.m.

(Ord. No. 652, 5 1., 3-22-20L6)

Sec. 64. - Sale on the 25th day of December.

It shall be unlawful to sell alcoholic beverages in the city on the 25th day of December.

As noted in the attached minutes, the Planning and Zoning Commission did not
recommend City Council apProve this special exception by a vote of 3-2. Reasons given
did not reflect issues with the code, but instead opir,iorrs on the type of establishment
proposed.

RECOMMENDED ACTIoN: Planning and Zoning Commission does not recommend
approval for sales of alcohol for off-premise consumption (Vote 3-2 with one member
absent and one vacant seat) in the downtown district.

ATTACHMENTS: Application
Minutes Excerpt

CITY COUNCIL ACTION: APPROVED _- 
- 

DISAPPROVED

100



Community Development Departrrrent

City oflttiil,iatow

50 NWMainStreet
Williston, H- 312696

Phone: (352) 52S-3060 Far (352) 5284390
Email : City.Plarurer@Willistontfl .org

Website : wr,vw._r,vi{iqtqnfl. org

SPECIAL D(CEPTION REQUEST
($720"00 - Commercial $eOO- Residential)

1 Name of Petitioner(s) : Rahi one propertyLLc,Kokilabenpatel, Managing Membet

Address of Petitioner(s) : 5439 SW 49th Street

City ocala- state-Fr. zipg7y_phone # -3s2/3,61,47g____
2. Parcel Number (from tax roll): _05528400-00

Size of property: 

-0-6_-- 
Legal Description: (please attach)

3. Description of Request:
Special Exception pursuant to the following:
Sec' 60-335. - Special exceptions - (3)Package store for sale of alcoholic beverages
sec. 6-6- 

; 
Consumption, possession, distribution, sales, prohibitions.

(a)Churches- It shall be unlawfuI for any person or entity to sell, distribute, serve, or
otherwise allow to be consumed, any ri"6hon" beveragi within 300 feet of any parcel
on which a church is located
Sec.46-122. - Special exceptions

4' A special exception shall not be granted by the Board of Adjustrnent unless and until:a' Awritten application for a special exception is zubmitted indicating the section of this article underwhich the specfl.ex9eption is sought Td "frirg the grounds on wlich it is requested. The
application ffi |"li{" a site plan or sketch of 

-the 
su"bject property drawn to scale. Refer to theCity of Williston l^and Development Code for specific criteria for the proposed Special Exception.b' Noticeof public ry*t"s (provided by staf0 on the special exception shall be given in the mannerprescribed in the City's l-and Development Code urd u.,y patty may appear in person or by agentor attorney;

c' The board of adjustment shall make fitdiogr that it is empowered under the section of this articledescribed h t* application to grant *: "p*i"r exception and that the granting of the specialexception, with any,appropriate conditions and safeguards that the roia or.y"a**.r*essary,will not adversely affect the public interesf

1

101



d' In granting Ty sPecial exception, the board of adjustment may prescribe appropriate conditions
and safeguards in conforrrity with this article. Violation of suih-conditionsandiafeguards, when
made a part of the terms under which the special exception is granted, shall be deemed a violation
of this *t-\:-h -*ryg 1 srTt of 

-a 
spgai exceptioni the uoaia of adjustnrent shall prescribe a

time limit within which the action for which the special exception is granted shall be Lug* o.
completed or both. Failure to begin or complete, or bottu such action"within the time limit shallvoid the special exception.

By signing below, theproperty owner acknowledgers that the information provided to the City on this
application is true and correct to the best of_their tlnowledge that they havi read thjs fonn in iL entirety and
that the applicant listed above is authorized to submit any-and alt infornration required by the city for ihe
ptrrposes of this application for a Special Exception.

'af:gSignature of Property Owner:

City'

Site Plan (to scale)
Legal Description

J,efter 
authorizing Agent to act on behalf of property owner (if required)

l'etter explaining tturt all requirements of the s&cial Exception hive been met in accordance with the
s Land Development Code.

2

102



103



4c*, trI
I
t

.{

{t

{

"fi

\

I

I

/

I
I
i
I

I
I

t!
,l
tt
i,
!
I

I

104



Lesd Descrintion

Rahi One Property, LLC

Lots l, 2, and4, BLOCK 4, MAP OF WILLISTON, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book l,
Page 1, Public Records of Levy, County, Florida.

105



Norm D. Fugatc
Board CertifiedAttomey
.Red Eshte l^a.

Wmdroe lllake l'ugate
AssociateAftomey

. Cfry, County and Locd Goremment Law

March 16,2021

Norm D. Fugate, P.A.
A Iaw Firm

To Whom it MayConcem:

{oodloe Blake Fugate 9f Norm D- Fugate P.A., has firll authorization to act as my legal agent in the
Planning' Zoning, Permitting ol ryd Development procedures regarding p.op"rty.;;J-by Rahi one
Property LLC, Parcel Number 0552g-000-00.

City of Williston
50 NW Main Street
Williston, FL32696

Sincerely

tersFl
Keilaffi]ffii
Managing Member
Rahi One Property LLC
5439 SW 4fth Avenue
Ocala, FL34474

248 Northwest Main Street Pgl g/mce Box g8, Wi[iston; Ftorida 32696 - (352) 52&0019 Main _ (352) 5284919 Faxcedar Kev office:497 second street, Post ffice Box 4G6, ceoai iei Fisz625 - (352) s43-5sb5
www.nonndfugatepa.com

106



Norm D. Fugalc
Board CertifiedAttomey

. Real Esble La,

WoodroeBlake Fugate
Assocrlate Attomey

. City, County ild Local Go.effinent Law Norm D. Fugate, P.A.
A Law Firm

March 19,2021

City of Williston
50 NW Main Street
Williston, FL32696

To Whom it May Concern:

Please consider this as communication that all requirements of the Special Exception have been met in
accordance with the City's Land Development Code. The following considerations have beeir addressed
by the Owner and their agents:

a. d(3)(a) Ingress and egress to property and proposed struchres thereon with particular reference
to automotive and pedestrian safety and convenience, traffrc flow and control, and access in case
of fire or catastrophe.
b. d(3xb) Off-street parking nad learling areas, where required, with particular attention to the
items in subsection d(3)(a)of this section and the economic, noise, glare, or odor effects of the
special exception on adjoining properties and properties generally in the district
c. Refuse and service areas, with particular reference to the items in subsections d(3Xa) and (b) of
this section.
d. Utilities, with reference to locations, availability, and compatibility.
e. Screening and buffering with reference to f5pe, dimensions, and character.
f. Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting with reference to glare, traffrc safety, economic
effects, and compatibility and harrnony with properties in the district.
g. Required yards and other open EEce-
h. Considerations relating to general compatibility with adjacent properties and other properry in
the district including but not limited to:

(1 )Conformity with Comprehensive Plan
(2)The existing land use pattern
(3)The impact of the proposed use upon the load on public facilities such as schools,
utilities, and streets
(a)Changed or changing conditions which find the proposed use to be advantageous to
the community and the neighborhood
(5)The impact of the proposed use upon living conditions in the neighborhood;
(6)The impact of the proposed use upon traffic congestion or other public safety matters
(7)The impact of the proposed use upon drainage;
(8)The impact ofthe proposed use upon light and air to adjacent area;
(9)The impact of the proposed use uponproperty values in the adjacent area;
(10)The impact of the proposed use upon the improvement or development of adjacent
properfy in accordance with existing regulations
(1l)The impact of the proposed use with regard to the scale of needs of the neighborhood
s1 ths ssmmunity

248 Northwest Main Street, Post o,ffice Box 98, Williston, Florida 32696 - (352) 528-0019 Main - (3b2) 5284919 Fax
Cedar Key ffice: 497 Second Street, Post Office Box 466, Cedar Key, FL 32625 - (352) 543-5555

www.normdfugatepa.com

107



All of the criteria necessary for Special Exception are evidenced in the Site Plan, the Agplication, or
elsewhere in the package includd. All impacts of the development (a-h) that are to be taken into
consideration regarding the Special Exception mirror the impacts of any other Commercial development
that would be built on the site without the require,ment of a Special Exception.

Attorney at orm I). Fugate, P.A,
normdfugatqracom
248 N.W. Main Street
Post Office Box 98
Willistoa Florida 32696

352-528-0019 phone
352-5284919 fax
blakda),normdfiieateoa.com

WBFAeT

108



April27,202L Planning and Zoning commission Voting Except from Minutes:

Conclusion:

staff recommends approval for the special exception for the "package store,,. Ms. Jackie Gorman
reiterated to the Board that their vote needs to be based on any issue that this use may cause and that
the staff had checked to make sure all the issues have been covered which is why it is recommended for
approval to move to city council. Mr. Rich Merando asked from a legal standpoint that there,s nothing
legally stopping this, but can it be a conscious objection to allowing the use. Ms. Gorman said they need
to talk about only any issues this location may cause. Also, this is fact based because it a euasi Hearing
and the request does not conflict with any codes. Mr. Fuller had a concern about the hours of operation
that the City Council should consider an ordinance regarding liquor sales on Sunday.

Mr' Bellefleur motioned to recommend approval of the special exception to city council. Motion was
not seconded.

Mr' clark motioned to recommend to city council that they do not approve the special exception. Mr.
Merando second and noted that because the Pastor (of the closest church) that is here tonight, even
though he is one person he represents his congregation and is their voice and out of respect for him, he
rejected the recommendation. Motion carries 3-2 (with one absent member and 1 vacant seat).

109




